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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Ping, aged 52, was appointed as Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Director of Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited (the
“Company”) in October 2004. He is the founder and chairman of the
Tide Time Holdings Limited (together with its subsidiaries, collectively the
“Tidetime Group”), a substantial shareholder of the Company. The Tidetime
Group is principally engaged in the educational publications, remote
education, as well as distribution and production of publication and
computer peripherals in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Mr.
Chen graduated from /1 B %2 &1 E 2t (Anhui Mechanical Colleage,
the PRC) (formerly as “Z B # % 28 (Anhui Mechanical School)”),
majoring in industrial automation control. Prior to founding the Tidetime
Group in 1990, Mr. Chen acted as researcher in /3 B 1t 3= 7 1= B BR #F
T FT and B _EF R EFFITAT respectively. Mr. Chen is the brother-
in-law of Ms. Ma Jian Ying, the Deputy Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director of the Company.

Ms. Ma Jian Ying, aged 50, was appointed as Deputy Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Director of the Company in October 2004. Ms. Ma
is the director of the Tidetime Group. She was a graduate-student of the
faculty of economics and management of the University of Tongji,
Shanghai, the PRC. Ms. Ma has extensive business experience in the
PRC and has been an assistant researcher of A B 2 R B 7T
L. Ms. Ma is the sister-in-law of Mr. Chen Ping, the Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Walter Stasyshyn, aged 57, was appointed as Executive Director
of the Company in November 2004. Mr. Stasyshyn is a practicing lawyer
in Canada. Mr. Stasyshyn received his honorable bachelor’s degree from
the University of Toronto, Canada and a bachelor’s degree in laws (LLB)
from the University of Windsor, Canada. He has over 30 years of
experience in corporate and commercial laws and corporate finance.
Before joining the Company, Mr. Stasyshyn has established his
technology-related businesses (covering software development,
telecommunication, digital compression, remote education aspects). Mr.
Stasyshyn is a director of the Tidetime Group.
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Mr. Man Ming, aged 46, was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company in November 2004. Mr. Man is a director of the Tidetime
Group. Mr. Man has over 20 years of experience in businesses such as
remote education, properties development and corporate investment
and management in China. Mr. Man is also a director of it R & |l iR 12
HB RS M AR A F, the Tidetime Group’s operating arm for remote
education business in China.

Ms. Tung Hsiao-Chi, aged 47, was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company in March 2005. Ms. Tung holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from Harvard Business School and a Bachelor
degree of Science in Mathematics and Computer Science from University
of California Los Angeles. Ms. Tung has over 20 years of experience in
finance, operation control and project management. Prior to joining the
Company, Ms. Tung worked for China Netcom as General Manager of
Financial Services Center and Assistant Chief Financial Officer. Ms. Tung
has also worked for several renowned global corporations, such as
Agilent Technologies, Inc., Hewlett-Packard Company and Mitsubishi
Corporation in the United States.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yan Tat Wah, Joseph, aged 42, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in 1998. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a
fellow member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He is a senior
partner and founder of the accounting firm Messrs. Li, Ko & Yan, Certified
Public Accountants.
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Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David, aged 62, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2004. He is a graduate
of the University of Harvard with a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration. Mr. Chu has served a number of international sizable
institutions. Since 1996, Mr. Chu has joined Sinochem Hong Kong
Holdings Limited (“Sinochem”) (formerly as “Wah Tak Fung Holdings
Limited”), a company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as director and is responsible
for the overall corporate planning and decision making of Sinochem. He
is also the non-executive director of Jiuzhou Development Co., Limited
(formerly as “Zhu Kuan Development Co., Limited”), Catic Shenzhen
Holdings Limited, Catic International Holdings Limited and Hong Kong
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited. Those companies are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. He has been a member of a number
of consultative committees of the Hong Kong SAR Government
(“‘HKSAR”). In May 1998 and September 2000, Mr. Chu was re-elected
a legislative councilor for the HKSAR. In 2001, Mr. Chu was conferred
with an Honorary Doctorate Degree in Public Service by the Northeastern
University in the United States and also appointed as Unofficial Justice of
Peace by the HKSAR. In 2003, Mr. Chu was elected as a deputy of the
HKSAR to the 10th National Congress of the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Jordan Z. Deng, aged 53, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in March 2005. Mr. Deng is currently
the Chief Representative, Asia, International Risk Consultant, LLC, and
has over 20 years of experience in China-related business development
and management. He graduated from Fudan University in Shanghai,
China with a Bachelor of Law. He also holds a Master of Arts in
International Development from George Washington University, USA and
Doctor Degree in Public and Politics from Penn State University of USA.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

We scaled down our business in 2006 to release part of our resources
for new pursuit. However, the performance of our new business in 2007
has not been satisfactory. Turnover dropped as the sales of our new
products needed some time to pick up.

The difficulties the Group encountered during the year were mainly related
to its business migration. The performance of its existing business
deteriorated at a fast pace while the products and projects of its new
business needed a longer period of time to establish their market positions.
The turnover of the Group dropped as a result of such time lag. The
Group will continue to divest its interests in non-performance subsidiaries
and projects for greater flexibility in resources allocation in the coming
year.

Broadcasting programmes production and sales have become the Group’s
major income source in 2007 as compared with 2006. Profit margin of
mobile media of its subsidiary had been squeezed to an unacceptable
level due to keen competition and price pressure caused by similar
products in the market. The Group has discontinued the mobile media
business. The operation of DVD9 production line has been under pressure
as a result of high rentals, high payrolls and market shrinkage in Hong
Kong. The management is reviewing such operation. The Group will also
seek opportunities to invest in the business of HD storage and playback
media and services.

PROSPECTS

The first year of Group’s business expansion was fundamental and
influential for future prospects. Looking ahead, building on the experience
gained in the last two years, we anticipate potential development for the
new media business. Yet, given the high cost to be incurred, the
management will make corresponding arrangement to reduce cost and
enhance its competitive edge as well as profit margin.

Moreover, the management will keep on reviewing the Group’s business
mode and expanding its business scope to other domains for a diversified
revenue base.

In July 2007, the Group issued convertible notes in the amount of
HK$25,353,600, which will be intended by the Group for new business
acquisition to enhance long-term value of our shareholders. The directors
are seeking acquisition opportunities and will further raise capital to
strengthen the Company’s capital structure when necessary.

On behalf the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my
thanks to all shareholders and business partners of the Group for their
continuous and devoted support; and especially to our major investors
for their confidence and support for the Group’s extensive expansion
efforts. | would also like to express my gratitude and appreciation to our
management and staff for their dedication and distinguished teamwork.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Result

The Group’s consolidated turnover amounted to approximately HK$32
million (2006: approximately HK$51.3 million), representing a decrease of
37% over that of 2006. The decline was mainly due to the cessation of
operation of a subsidiary of the Group which produced and involved in
the sales of mobile media and DVD9 products, etc.

The loss attributable to the shareholders of the year ended 31 March
2007 was approximately HK$67.0 million (including loss from operation
and securities investment HK$24.5 million and HK$42.5 million
respectively) (2006: HK$37 million), representing an increase of
approximately 83.6% when compared with that of 2006.

Loss per ordinary share was increased to HK$12 cents (2006: HK$7.4
cents).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2007, the Group’s current ratio was 0.7 (2006: 1.5), with
current assets of approximately HK$37.4 million (2006: HK$109.9 million)
against current liabilities of approximately HK$53.5 milion (2006: HK$75.3
million). Cash and cash equivalents was approximately HK$2.8 million
(2006: HK$11.5 million).

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 March 2007 was 2.36 (2006: 0.01).

The Group’s working capital is mainly financed through internal generated
cashflow, short-term borrowings and equity financing. There has not
been any change in the Group’s funding and treasury policies during the
year, and the Group continues to follow the practice of prudent cash
management.
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Treasury Policies

The Group adopts conservative funding and treasury policies in cash
and financial management. Cash is generally placed in short-term deposits
mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi. The Group’s
financing requirements are regularly reviewed by the management.

The Group adopts a prudent treasury policy whereas majority of its bank
balances and cash is denominated in Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi
and placed on short-term deposit.

Exposure to Fluctuation in Foreign Exchange

The Group’s monetary assets and liabilities were principally denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. As the Hong Kong
dollars is pegged to the US dollars and the fluctuation in exchange rate
between Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi is minimal, the Group’s
exposure to currency exchange risk was insignificant.

Charges on Assets and Contingent Liabilities

The Group leases a motor vehicle under a finance lease arrangement to
be expired on May 2009. Save as disclosed herein, the Group did not
have any charges on assets or have any material contingent liabilities as
at 31 March 2007.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2007, the Group had a total of 20 employees (2006: 21).
Employees’ remuneration packages are reviewed and determined by

reference to the market pay and individual performance.

The staff benefits include contributions to mandatory provident fund,
medical scheme and share option scheme.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code of
Corporate Governance Practices (“the Code”) in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance practice.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2007 except for certain deviations
disclosed herein.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by directors. Having made specific enquiry, all directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group
(comprising the Company and its subsidiaries) and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The Board has
delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Executive Directors and
senior management who perform their duties under the leadership of the
Chief Executive Officer.

The Board currently consists of five Executive Directors and three
Independent non-executive Directors. One of our Independent non-
executive Directors has the professional and accounting qualifications
required by the Listing Rules.

Under A.1.1 of the Code, the board should meet regularly and board
meetings should be held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals.

The members of the Board held two regular meetings during the year.
The significant matters concerning the business activities and operation
of the Group during the year had been adequately and duly reported,
discussed and resolved at the two Board meetings. Minutes of board
meetings and committee meetings are taken by the Company Secretary
and are available for all board members.
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The members of the Board and the attendance of each member are as
follows:

E=SgXRBREREB 2HFEREFINT:

Directors Number of attendance
BEx B RE
Executive Directors Chen Ping (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 2/2
WITES BRT (E/EFHITEAREL)
Ma Jian Ying (Deputy Chief Executive Officer) 2/2
B (BlfTBAEZ)
Walter Stasyshyn 2/2
Man Ming 2/2
A
Tung Hsiao-Chi 1/2
B/
Independent Non-executive Director Yan Tat Wah, Joseph 2/2
BYFRTES HEHE
Chu Yu Lin, David 2/2
R 4h B
Jordan Z. Deng 2/2
B

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Yan Tat Wah, Joseph, Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David and Mr. Jordan Z. Deng
and considers them to be independent.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship with each other except that Ms. Ma Jian Ying is the
sister-in-law of Mr. Chen Ping, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director of the Company. Given the nature and business
objective of the Company, the Board has a balance of skill and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The
list of directors and their respective biographies are set out on pages 4
to 6 of this annual report respectively.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Chen Ping, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Although under A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual, the Board believes that this structure
enables the Company to make and implement decisions promptly and
efficiently and believes it is beneficial to the business development of the
Company.

Under A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term and subject to re-election. Currently, none of the
Independent non-executive Directors are appointed for specific term.
However, they are subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

In addition, under A.4.2 of the Code, every director should be subject to
retirement and rotation at least once every three year. Under the provisions
of the Bye-laws of the Company, the Chairman of the Board and the
Managing Director of the Company (In the opinion of the Board, the roles
of the managing director and the chief executive officer are the same) are
not subject to retirement and rotation at the annual general meeting of
the Company while holding such office.

The Company will propose certain amendments to its Bye-laws to the
effect that, among others, all Directors, including the Chairman of the
Board and the Managing Director of the Company, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years whether they are
appointed for specific term. The amendments shall also bring the Bye-
laws of the Company up to date and in line with the Code.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy for the remuneration of all directors and senior management of the
Company.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting. Members
of the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of each member
are as follows:

FHEES

FMEESRAN (EHEE) AAF2RE
EREMEBABZHFMETRIRAESS
R

FR FMHZESERT—REZ FHEZE
EREBRBEKEBZHFELZLT

Directors Number of attendance
5= HERE
Independent non-executive Directors  Yan Tat Wah, Joseph (Chairman) 1/1
B IEHITES BEE (£/F)
Chu Yu Lin, David 1M1
oK 2 BBk
Jordan Z. Deng 1/1
Bl 5
Executive Directors Chen Ping 0/1
BITES BR
Tung Hsiao-Chi 0/1
B

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors and recommended a reduction of
their salaries in light of the performance of the Group.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not established a Nomination Committee. The duties
and functions of the Nomination Committee recommended in the Code
are performed by the Board collectively with no director being involved in
fixing his/her own terms of appointment and no Independent non-
executive Director being involved in assessing his own independence.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the Group was charged HK$303,000 for auditing services
by the Company’s auditors, CCIF CPA Limited.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the financial reporting
process and internal control system of the Group and providing advice
and comments to the Board.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings. Members of
the Audit Committee and the attendance of each member are as follows:

EREEE

EREZBEARRNAKREZHBRBRERFK
NEEZEHE YMEETSREEZERER

FRA BEZZECEBRITMREZ -BERXE
ERBRBKEB ZHFELEZIDT

Directors Number of attendance

= HERE
Independent non-executive Directors  Yan Tat Wah, Joseph (Chairman) 2/2
BYFNITES BEE (£/F)

Chu Yu Lin, David 2/2

K 4 B

Jordan Z. Deng 2/2

B 7k

During the year, the Audit Committee has performed the following duties:

= reviewed with the management and the external auditors the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2006
and the unaudited interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 September 2006, with recommendations to the Board
for approval;

— receiving management’s report on the effective implementation of
internal control system covering financial, operational, and
procedural compliance; and

- reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and statutory
requirements.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Yan Tat Wah, Joseph
possesses appropriate professional qualifications in finance and accounting
and meets the requirements of rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

ACCOUNTABILITY

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the accounts of the
Group for the relevant accounting periods under applicable statutory and
regulatory requirements which give true and fair view of the state of
affairs, the results of operations and cashflows of the Group. In preparing
the accounts for the six months ended 30 September 2006 and for the
year ended 31 March 2007, the directors have adopted suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently. The accounts for the
reporting year have been prepared on a going concern basis.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The internal control system of the Group is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance of no material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievements of the Group’s objectives.
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The directors of the Company present the Directors’ Report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2007 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 25.

No interim dividend was paid for the year ended 31 March 2007 (2006:
Nil) and the Board did not recommend any payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2007 (2006: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in note 27(a) to the financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group are set out in
note 14 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 132.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are
set out in note 27(c) to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda, at 31 March 2007, the
Company cannot distribute any of its reserves to the shareholders of the
Company. However, the Company’s share premium account of
HK$13,710,000 as at 31 March 2007 can be distributed in the form of
fully paid bonus shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the aggregate sales attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers were less than 30% of the total
turnover. The aggregate purchases contributed to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s cost of sales.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company in office during the year and up to the
date of this report are as follows:

Mr. Chen Ping (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Ma Jian Ying (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Walter Stasyshyn

Mr. Man Ming

Ms. Tung Hsiao-Chi

Mr. Yan Tat Wah, Joseph #

Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David #

Mr. Jordan Z. Deng #

# independent non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Bye-law 110 of the Bye-laws, the directors who are retiring
by rotation at the annual general meeting to be held on 12 September
2007, are Ms. Ma Jian Ying and Ms. Tung Hsiao-Chi, Ms. Ma Jian Ying,
who being eligible, will offer herself for election. Ms. Tung Hsiao-Chi, who
will be leaving the Group in August 2007, will not offer herself for
re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as regards their independence to
the Company and considers that each of the independent non-executive
directors is independent to the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

During the year, none of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered
into any service agreements with any members of the Group (excluding
contracts expiring or determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Saved as disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, no contract or
arrangement entered into by any member of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) subsisting as at 31 March 2007.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2007, the interests of the directors and their respective
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Hong Kong (the “SFQO”), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions (the “Model Code”) by Directors of the Listed
Companies were as follows:

(1) Long Positions in the Shares

EEC2RBEYN
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(1) RBROFZHRE

Number of Shares
and underlying

securities held as at Approximate

Name of Director Capacity 31 March 2007 % of holding
R-ZBZE+tF=A=+—H BB
EEHA E47) RO REEZESFEE BB
Mr. Chen Ping Interest of a controlled corporation 73,340,000 13.19%
(Note)
PR S SN A 73,340,000 13.19%
(Krat)
Note: Wit

Such Shares were owned by Tide Time Holdings Limited (“Tidetime”)
which was beneficially owned as to 70% by Mr. Chen Ping (the chairman,
chief executive officer and executive Director of the Company), 5% by
Ms. Ma Jianhua (spouse of Mr. Chen Ping), 10% by Ms. Ma Jian Ying
(deputy chief executive officer, executive Director of the Company and
sister-in-law of Mr. Chen Ping), 3% by Mr. Walter Stasyshyn (executive
Director) and 10% by Mr. Man Ming (executive Director). Mr. Chen Ping
and Ms. Ma Jianhua were deemed to be interested in such Shares by
virture of Part XV of the SFO.

% % B 15 f Tide Time Holdings Limited ( [ 3%
B BE RRARERE THRERZENTE
ERFEE FREELT (REREZR
8) AAFBTTHAHKFZNTEETFTEZRL
T (BRFEXEZNE) A 1TE FE Walter
StasyshynE £ RITEEXHAEED I E
HHEBHET0% ~ 5%  10% ~ 3% 8 10% 2 %
HRIBEES RAEEOIEXVE - R FxE
IERELTEABEXERMD 2R
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Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors or chief executive of the Company or their spouse or children
under age of 18 years to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate,

Rights to acquire Shares (2 BERODZEF
The interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company EERZTLF=-A=1+—HAE¥ABEZ
as at 31 March 2007 were as follows: RARIBREERNT
Number of Number of
share options Cancelled/ share options
outstanding forfeited outstanding
Date of Exercisable at 1 April during at 31 March Exercise
Name of Director grant period 2006 the year 2007 price
R-BBXRE RZBELE
H—H EFET=E
e RAT6E FRETH i RATEE
ExEps =i A8 T ZEREHE SRY ZBREHE THEE
HK$
B
Ms. Tung Hsiao-Chi  14.3.2005 1.7.2006 - 100,000 100,000 Nil £& 1.075
31.12.2006
EWS 8o —ETREF —EEREF
=HA+mA +HA—-HZ
—EERF
+=ZA=+—H
14.3.2005 1.7.2007 - 100,000 Nil £& 100,000 0.136
31.12.2007
—ZETREF —TTLF
=A+mEAH +tR—BZE
—EELF
+ZA=+—H
14.3.2005 1.7.2008 - 100,000 Nil & 100,000 0.149
31.12.2008
—ZETREF —EENF
=A+mEAH +H—BZE
—EENF
+ZA=+—H
Total A8 5T 300,000 200,000

or had exercised such rights.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme and details of
movements in the Company’s share options during the year to subscribe
for shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company granted
under the share option schemes are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2007, the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding under the share option
scheme represents approximately 0.036% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2007, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that other
than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors, the
following shareholders had notified the Company of their relevant interests
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company.

As at 31 March 2007, so far as are known to the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the shareholders (other than the Directors or
the chief executive of the Company whom'’s interests were disclosed in
page 19 to 20 of this annual report) who had interests or short positions
in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company, being 5% or more
of the Company’s issued share capital, which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

fBR T &

AR BT ESFAERRRBEARFZ
BRI B A RBAR R KAH BREE
BEOOITZBM ZARRBERERFAZE
B BN M REME28
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RIBE S R BAEEROIFEXVERR AR R TG
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No. of Shares and
underlying securities held
as at 31 March 2007
R-ZEE+tHE=HA=+—H

BENRORAEBESHE

Name of Substantial % of
Shareholder Capacity Long position holding
TERRER g6 #E BRESL
Tidetime (Note 1) Corporation 73,340,000 13.19
R=iE (Hfat1) )z

Ms. Ma Jianhua Family 73,340,000 13.19
HRELL BB

Evenstar Master Fund Segregated Investment Manager 37,577,420 6.76

Portfolio Company WEKEA
Sun Media Investment Holdings Corporation 37,000,000 6.65

Limited (“Sun Media”) (Note 2) &
SRR EFR AR
([R5 l) (Hat2)
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Notes:

Such Shares were owned by Tide Time Holdings Limited (“Tidetime”)
which was beneficially owned as to 70% by Mr. Chen Ping (the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and executive Director of the Company), 5% by
Ms. Ma Jianhua (spouse of Mr. Chen Ping), 10% by Ms. Ma Jian Ying
(Deputy Chief Executive Officer and executive Director of the Company
and sister-in-law of Mr. Chen Ping), 3% by Mr. Walter Stasyshyn (executive
Director of the Company) and 10% by Mr. Man Ming (executive Director
of the Company). Mr. Chen Ping and Ms. Ma Jian Hua were deemed to
be interested in such Shares by virture of Part XV of the SFO.

Such Shares were owned by Sun Media which was beneficially owned
as to 72% by Ms. Yang Lan. Ms. Yang Lan is deemed to be interested in
the same parcel of Shares held by Sun Media by virtue of Part XV of the
SFO. Mr. Bruno Wu Zheng is the spouse of Ms. Yang Lan and Mr. Bruno
Wu Zheng’s interests in these shares are as a result attributed to Ms.
Yang Lan for this purpose.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short position in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2007.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s Shares during the year.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of significant post balance sheet events are set out in note 36 to
the financial statements.

LITIGATIONS

Details of litigations are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, which comprises three Independent non-executive
Directors of the Company namely Mr. Yan Tat Wah, Joesph, Mr. Chu Yu
Tin, David and Mr. Jordan Z. Deng, has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial results for the year ended 31 March 2007.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 10 to 14 of this annual
report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms not less exacting than the required
standard as stipulated under the Model Codes for Securities Transactions
by Directors as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules and, after
specific enquiries, confirmed that all directors have complied with the
said Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2007.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for the pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2007.

AUDITORS
A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting

of the Company to re-appoint CCIF CPA Limited as auditors of the
Company for the year ending 31 March 2008.

By Order of the Board
Chen Ping
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 July 2007
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CCIF
CCIF CPA LIMITED

20/F Sunning Plaza
10 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay Hong Kong

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited (the “company”) set out on pages 25 to
131, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 31 March 2007, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of the report.
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Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements. However, because of the matters described in
the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, we were not able to
express an audit opinion.

Basis for disclaimer of opinion

We have considered the adequacy of the disclosures made in note 34(a)
to the financial statements concerning the possible outcome of legal
proceedings against the company for alleged breach of agreements. The
Plaintiffs sought damages of approximately HK$76,862,000 or such an
amount as the court may determine, interest thereon, costs and/or other
relief, from the company. The directors of the company are of the opinion
that the company will strongly refute and the company intends to
vigorously contest the allegations. Based on legal advice, the directors of
the company are of the opinion that the company has a very good
chance of successfully defending the case and hence the claim would
not result in losses to the group and the company. Although the directors
of the company consider the allegations to be without merit and too
remote to be held against the company, there is a material uncertainty as
to whether the above action can be successfully defended and the
potential significant impact on the financial performance and position of
the group and the company.

In addition, as set out in note 2(a) to the financial statements, the group
incurred a loss for the year of approximately HK$67,017,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2007, the Group’s consolidated current liabilities
exceeded its consolidated current assets by approximately
HK$16,138,000 as at 31 March 2007, and the company’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately HK$22,431,000 as at 31
March 2007. These conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the group’s and the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In view of the extent and potential impact of the material uncertainties
described above, we have disclaimed our opinion in these respects.
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Disclaimer of opinion: disclaimer on view given by the financial
statements

Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, we do not express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements as to whether they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the group as at 31
March 2007 and of the group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. In
all other respects, in our opinion the consolidated financial statements
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 July 2007

Betty P.C. Tse
Practising Certificate Number P03024
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Consolidated Income Statement

e WER

For the year ended 31 March 2007 {2 — L+ F=A=1+—HIFFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

2007 2006
—EELHF —TERF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 BETFT BT
Turnover —F ] 4 32,050 51,132
Cost of sales 5 B R (28,086) (43,594)
Gross profit EA 3,964 7,538
Other revenue Hh s 5 1,338 1,951
Other net (loss)/income Hit (E518) WA F 5 6 (45,007) 2,743
Distribution costs Al =1 (2,660) (3,870)
Administrative expenses THAX (18,250) (18,872)
Impairment loss on fixed assets BEEEERBERE - (1,136)
Impairment loss on goodwill a2z REEE (10,749) (21,622)
Impairment loss on EREETE 2 BIEEE
broadcasting programmes - (5,297)
Impairment loss on amounts due from KRB LEWBA A
disposed subsidiaries HIBZREEE 7(d) (21,943) =
Impairment loss on trade receivables B SR ERZ 2 REEE (1,549) (568)
Reversal of impairment loss on HEibprU iRz
other receivables Rk B &5 18 B D) 3,333 2,928
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries  H & i B A ]l zs,~
(BH) #58 31(a) 24,535 (265)
Loss from operations KEEE (66,988) (36,470)
Finance costs A& AR A 7(a) (29) (40)
Loss before taxation BrBi AT & 18 7 (67,017) (36,510)
Income tax FRiS#t 8() - =
Loss for the year TEEBR (67,017) (36,510)
Attributable to: BEiG:
Equity holders of the Company RARE=EFAA 11 (67,017) (36,510)
Minority interests DR RS - =
Loss for the year REEEFE (67,017) (36,510)
Loss per share BEREE 12
Basic BN HK(12.05) cents & il HK(7.44) cents/ 1l
Diluted B N/A i H N/A i3 A
The notes on pages 31 to 131 form part of these financial statements. FEINEBIEZHMEEBRZETBRE 2 — B

7]
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

hREBEERER

As at 31 March2007 R —ZEZE+F=HA=1+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| (&)

2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
B it BEET T BEET T BT T BT T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Fixed assets ERE 14 12,598 18,359
Intangible assets mEE 15 841 841
Goodwill EES 17 3,184 13,933
Interest in an associate A RN o - ey 18 - =
Other financial assets HMMBEE 19 3 3
16,626 33,136
Current assets RBEE
Broadcasting programmes  E & &0 B 20 20,927 34,569
Trading securities BHIRE 21 6,207 53,415
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk EEWEERH 22 7,388 10,434
Cash and cash equivalents 324 &%
RELIEHE 23 2,853 11,525
_______ 37,375 -....109,943
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMEMNER 24 53,279 75,032
Obligations under B & B A
finance leases 25 234 235
Convertible bonds Al R % & 55 26 - =
_______ 53,513 e 15,267
Net current HE (86
(liabilities)/assets EEFE (16,138) 34,676
Total assets less current BEEBRBEE
liabilities 488 67,812
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Obligations under A ERE
finance leases 25 273 507
NET ASSETS EEFRE 215 67,305
CAPITAL AND RESERVES &7 [ i % 27()
Share capital [N 5,560 5,560
Reserves fE (5,345) 61,745
Total equity attributable XA FERIFHA
to equity holders of PEfL B A48 58
the Company 215 67,305
Minority interests DEBRRER - =
TOTAL EQUITY R A 4a 28 215 67,305

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 July n=

2007

The notes on pages 31 to 131 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

EEREER

As at 31 March 2007 R =F L +F=F=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

2007 2006
—ETLHF —ETRE
Note HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt BETF T BETF T BT T BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZEKE 16 6,994 36,287
Other financial assets HEysEE 19 1 1
6,995 36,288
Current assets REBEE
Trading securities BHEEE 21 6,207 53,415
Trade and other receivables 2 5 R E i EUBRZR 22 9,487 7,717
Cash and cash equivalents IR&&ERIIREEE 23 547 4,816
16,241 c5.948
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B S REMERRR 24 38,672 37,166
Convertible bonds AR &5 26 - -
______ 38672 ....37.166
Net current #RE(AaE)

(liabilities)/assets EEFE (22,431) 28,782
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (&1f&) & EFE (15,436) 65,070
CAPITAL AND RESERVES J& 7~ & f# & 27(b)

Share capital % 2 5,560 5,560
Reserves (i (20,996) 59,510
(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)/ (BRAE4L) 7

TOTAL EQUITY B (15,436) 65,070
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 July RIETtF LA+ tHRKEESH AT R
2007 3

Chen Ping Ma Jian Ying
Director Director
E- E-
The notes on pages 31 to 131 form part of these financial statements. FE131EZHETBRZENFRE 2 —2F
ﬁ_j\ o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERDBER

For the year ended 31 March 2007 & =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| (&)

— ==

tF=HA=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RAAERBEAER
Share Convertible
Share Share Contributed  Exchange Capital option bond Accumulated Minority
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-Total interests Total
TRER SRR
kx  ROEE EREH EXRE ERGE BRERE G5RE 2TER N 35 @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT  BETT  A¥Trn  EETn  BEFr  AETr  E¥Trn  EEfrn  BEFr  A%Tn AEETr
At 1 April 2005 RZZEZTHF
MA—A 232,240 89,738 174,867 76 3,490 2 99 (411,271) 89,241 - 89,241
Exchange differenceson A E G B
translation of financial AR BRE
statements of JERES
overseas subsidiaries - - - 121 - - - - 121 - 121
Shares issued upon R RRES
conversion of L&)
convertible bonds 325 158 - - - - 99 - 384 - 384
Capital reduction R A (227,914) - 207,914 - - - - - - - -
Share premium reduction AR AR (7 & (E - (89,305) 89,305 = = = = = = = =
Utiisation of reserve against &) Ff % & ¥ 45
accumulated losses RiTER - - (407,288) = = = - 407,288 = = =
Shares issued through EBRE
placing BITRA 672 9,331 - - - - - - 10,003 - 10,003
Shares issued for acquisition & & — i B
of a subsidiary DR BTG 237 3,788 = = = = = = 4,025 = 4,025
Equity-settled share-based  IRAEERH R 5
transactions - - - - - 41 - - 4 - 41
Loss for the year AEEHE - - - - - - - (365100 (36,510) - (36510
At 31 March 2006 and RZEEREF
1 April 2006 =R=+-A
R=TERF
mA—H 5,560 13,710 84,798 197 3,490 43 - (40,493 67,305 - 67,305
Exchange differenceson A EFINHIB
translation of financial AR BRE
statements of ZERER
overseas subsidiaries - - - (114) - - - - (114) - (114)
Released upon disposal of & B
subsidiaries NGIEE S 4E - - - 27 - - - - 27 - 27
Equity-settled share-based ~ BRAZEERD X 5
transactions - - - - - 14 - - 14 - 14
Share options lapsed RyGERE - - - - - (28) - 28 - - -
Loss for the year AEEHE - - - - - - - (67,017)  (67,017) - (67,017)
At 31 March 2007 R-BRLHF
=Z=A=+-H 5,560 13,710 84,798 110 3,490 29 - (107,482 215 - 215

The notes on pages 31 to 131 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

MEBERER

For the year ended 31 March 2007 {2 — L+ F=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

2007 2006
—EELF —ETRF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt it BT BT T
Operating activities e
Loss before taxation BrEi R E 1R (67,017) (36,510)
Adjustments for: MUATIEE {EX T
Depreciation e 5,583 6,779
Impairment loss on fixed assets EEBEZREERE - 1,136
Amortisation of broadcasting programmes ~ E1&E &1 B 2 B 4 18,907 23,848
Amortisation of land lease premium BIEERWELM
for property held for own use & (B 5 - 7
Reversal of impairment loss HibprW iRz
for other receivables BB [E5 18 B [B] (3,333) (2,928)
Impairment loss on amounts due KB LEWBA A
from disposed subsidiaries IBZ R EEE 21,943 =
Impairment loss on trade receivables BHRWERERZ
VERENSE ! 1,549 568
Impairment loss on goodwill & 2 REEE 10,749 21,622
Impairment loss on BiEE B 2R EEsE
broadcasting programmes - 5,297
Finance costs A& A AR 29 40
Interest income A 2 WA (75) (1,104)
Loss on sale of fixed assets TEBEEESBE 76 680
Net realised and unrealised loss/(gain) BEHEEERAR
on trading securities AEBEE
(Yezs) 58 44,931 (6,140)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR (W)
g (24,535) 265
Equity-settled share-based BAREERNZZRZ
payment expenses 14 41
Operating profit before changes RETEEZESBFA 2
in working capital mEER 8,821 13,601
Decrease in trade and B 5 & H th fE U BR 5K
other receivables > 6,066 1,762
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B REMERERRK
other payables CRA) /i (22,864) 11,297
Net cash (used in)/generated mERK (EH)
from operating activities EECHEEHE (7,977) 26,660
Investing activities REEH
Advance to a related company Bl RN (1,014) =
Expenditure on broadcasting programmes EEE B 2 Fi (3,388) (37,463)
Payment for the purchase of fixed assets X {TiE B EE & & (88) (1,320)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets HEBEEE TS RIA 297 3,108
Proceeds from sale of trading securities HEBFIKE ZFTSRIA 2,277 41
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR 31 97) (11)
Interest received B2 U FIE 75 104
Net cash used in investing activities RETHEAZRSTE (1,938) (35,541)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mMERITRER

For the year ended 31 March 2007 {2 —EE+F=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| (&)

2007 2006
—EELE ZETREF
Note HK$°000 HK$000
K&t BEFT B TFT
Financing activities MEEE
Capital element of finance ENBERERESZ
lease rentals paid BRI D (235) (235)
Repayment of bank loans EERITER - (962)
Advances from directors E R e 2,200 =
Repayment to directors EEEEAN (700) =
Advances from related companies BAE R A FTIRE BN - 11,186
Repayment to related companies EEBEQRERK (296) (10,730)
Interest element of finance ENpEHEERE 2
lease rentals paid FEE D (29) (29)
Proceeds from issue of shares, BITRID FTISFIE
net of share issue expenses MR EITRX - 10,003
Other borrowing costs paid EREMEERKA - ©®)
Net cash generated from METHEEZ
financing activities ReFHE 940 9,227
Net (decrease)/increaseincashand BE&RZFHRELEHZ
cash equivalents Gm4) /% hnF 58 (8,975) 346
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April REA—HZBE£R
ZEREER 11,525 10,965
Effect of foreign exchange Exgs o HE
rate changes 303 214
Cash and cash equivalents R=BA=+—-H%2
at 31 March ReRkERBEELERA 23 2,853 11,525
The notes on pages 31 to 131 form part of these financial statements. %
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & B AE

For the year ended 31 March 2007 {2 — L+ F=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
as an exempted company with limited liability in Bermuda on 30
October 1992 under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and
its shares are listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to
the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2007 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in associate.

The Company acts as an investment holding. The subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the following businesses:

- broadcasting and content production; and
= publishing and multi-media product trading.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, rounded to the nearest thousand, which is the same as
the functional currency of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Material uncertainties relating to the going concern
basis

The Group incurred a loss for the year of approximately
HK$67,017,000 for the year ended 31 March 2007. As at
31 March 2007, the Group had consolidated net current
liabilities of approximately HK$16,138,000, and the
Company had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$22,431,000.
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T S
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & Y AL

For the year ended 31 March 2007 {2 —EE+F=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| (&)

2.

32

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(@

Material uncertainties relating to the going concern
basis (Continued)

The directors are of the opinion that the Group and the
Company are able to continue as a going concern and to
meet in full their financial obligations as and when they fall
due. In order to improve the Group’s and the Company’s
working capital position, immediate liquidity and cash flow
position of the Group and the Company, the directors
have implemented the following measures:

i) Attainment of profitable and positive cash
flow operations

The directors continue to implement cost control
measures over overheads and various general and
administrative expenses, and are actively seeking
new investment and business opportunities with
an aim to attain profitable and positive cash flow
operations.

i) Availability of additional external funding

The directors are considering various alternatives
to strengthen the working capital position of the
Group and the Company through various fund
raising exercises. Subsequent to the balance sheet
date, the Company arranged the issue of
convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount
of approximately HK$25,353,000 as referred to in
note 306.

In the opinion of the directors, in the light of all the
measures and arrangements implemented, the Group and
the Company will have sufficient cash resources to satisfy
their current working capital and other financial
requirements and it is reasonable to expect the Group
and the Company to remain a commercially viable concern.
Accordingly, the directors are satisfied that it is appropriate
to prepare the financial statements on a going concern
basis, notwithstanding the Group’s and the Company’s
financial position and tight liquidity as at 31 March 2007.

Should the Group and the Company be unable to continue
as a going concern, adjustments would have to be made
to restate the value of assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and
to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current
assets and liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
potential adjustments have not been reflected in these
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & B AE

For the year ended 31 March 2007 {2 — L+ F=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not
result in significant change to the Group’s accounting
policies applied on these financial statements for the current
and prior year presented. The Group has not applied any
new and revised standards or interpretations that are not
yet effective for the current accounting year (see note 39).

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the financial instruments are stated at their fair value
explained in the accounting polices set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & Y AL

For the year ended 31 March 2007 {2 —EE+F=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| (&)

2.

3.

34

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 38.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from activities. In assessing control, potential voting
rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

2. @mBEE(H)

(c)

MBREZRREE (F)

AEESRFEHGF RABBERR
ETBE BB BRI E
FEEF A2 BE A%ER
ERARHIEAER miHEaT
R F & EERERME X
HEERNE MR ER AR E

T

EEEERATEVEREE]
RAEME@REFEMBRE R
AR AT BE B BURF A B K
TR A B 2 HI - BN RES8 -

3. EEEEXE

(a)

MEARARDBRRES

MERREAREMENNQ
] fisl AN 5= 18 B R R Bl 7% 2 B Y
B REERRABE R R E
M RIS QBB ARG - EE
EREEEER TEZER
RATENEERRE-

RHB R E 2 B E R RS
ERREEEFRRLEER RS
AAGREUBRE-FEARF
RSB ZAREMNEEER
RERARPELEZ RER )51
ERNRELES MRS R 2HY
Ho-EBERETRHNBERLT £H
NAFIRR HEE 2 RE IR EE
HTemERERKEZRA -
K-



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & B AE

For the year ended 31 March 2007 {2 — L+ F=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned
by the Company, whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. Minority
interests are presented in the consolidated balance sheet
within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. Minority interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement as an allocation of the
total income statement for the year between minority
interests and the equity holders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess,
and any further losses applicable to the minority, are
charged against the Group’s interest except to the extent
that the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able
to, make additional investment to cover the losses. If the
subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest
is allocated all such profits until the minority’s share of
losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.

Loans from holders of minority interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheet depending on the nature of the liability.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 3(j)), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).
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3.

36

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method
and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
associate’s net assets, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). The consolidated income statement includes
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the associates for the year, including any impairment
loss on goodwill relating to the investment in associates
recognised for the year (see note 3(c) and ().

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest in the associate is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associate, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately
in income statement.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and
is tested annually for impairment (see note 3(j)). In respect
of associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the interest in the associate.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination or an
investment in an associate is recognised immediately in
income statement.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit or an associate
during the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss
on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at cost, which is their transaction price unless fair value
can be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques
whose variables include only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where
indicated otherwise below. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:
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3.

38

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as
current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in income statement as incurred. At each
balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in income
statement.

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-
maturity securities are stated in the balance sheet at
amortised cost less impairment losses (see note 3())).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the balance
sheet at cost less impairment losses (see note 3())).

Investment in securities which do not fall into any of the
above categories are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised directly in equity, except foreign exchange gains
and losses in respect of monetary items such as debt
securities which are recognised directly in income
statement. Where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in income statement. When these investments
are derecognised or impaired (see note 3(j)), the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised directly in equity is
recognised in income statement.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 {2 — L+ F=A=1+—HIFFE
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

U]

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is charged immediately to income statement, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedge the net investment in foreign
operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 3())).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
income statement on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation, except leasehold improvements, is calculated
to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the reducing balance method over their estimated useful
lives at the rate of 20% per annum. Leasehold
improvements is amortised over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than five years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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3.

40

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

0}

Copyright

Copyright costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 3(j)).
Amortisation of the copyright costs is charged to income
statement on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
unexpired copyright period or their estimated useful lives.
Copyright is amortised over its useful life from the date it
is available for use. Both the period and method of
amortisation are reviewed annually.

Broadcasting programmes

Broadcasting programmes are stated at cost less amounts
expensed and any impairment losses considered by the
management. Cost comprises direct expenditure and an
appropriate portion of production overheads. The cost of
the broadcasting programmes is expensed by way of
amortisation on systematic allocation of the depreciable
amount of the broadcasting programmes over their
estimated useful lives of not more than twelve months
from the date when the broadcasting programmes are
available for use. Both the period and method of
amortisation are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a
payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0

Leased assets (Continued)

i)

i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are included in fixed assets and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off
the cost or valuation of the assets over the term of
the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 3(f). Impairment losses
are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy as set out in note 3(j). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged
to income statement over the period of the leases
so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance
of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to income
statement in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to income statement in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to income statement in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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3.

42

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(@) Impairment of assets

i) Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost or are classified as
available-for-sale securities are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

- For unquoted equity securities are carried
at cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses
to equity securities are not reversed.

= For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through income statement. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables
(Continued)

- For available-for-sale securities, when a
decline in the fair value of an available-for-
sale financial asset has been recognised
directly in equity and there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, the
cumulative loss that had been recognised
directly in equity is removed from equity
and is recognised in income statement. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in income statement is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on the asset previously
recognised in income statement.

Impairment losses recognised in income
statement in respect of available-for-sale
equity securities are not reversed through
income statement. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is
recognised directly in equity.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in income
statement.
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3.

44

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Impairment of assets (Continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- intangible assets;

- investments in subsidiaries and associates
(except for those classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale)); and

= goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use
and intangible assets that have indefinite useful
lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EESEE (&)
) Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) EERE (&)
i) Impairment of other assets (Continued) i) Rt EERE (&)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in income
statement whenever the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwiill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to income statement in the year in which
the reversals are recognised.
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3.

46

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(k) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note 3
(), except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment
losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note 3())).

(0] Convertible notes
i) Convertible notes that contain an equity
component

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity
share capital at the option of the holder, where the
number of shares that would be issued on
conversion and the value of the consideration that
would be received at that time do not vary, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an
equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible notes is measured as the present value
of the future interest and principal payments,
discounted at the market rate of interest applicable
at the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities
that do not have a conversion option. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised
as the liability component is recognised as the
equity component. Transaction costs that relate to
the issue of a compound financial instrument are
allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised
in income statement on the liability component is
calculated using the effective interest method. The
equity component is recognised in the convertible
bond reserve until either the note is converted or
redeemed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & B AE

For the year ended 31 March 2007 {2 — L+ F=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0 Convertible notes (Continued)

i)

i)

Convertible notes that contain an equity
component (Continued)

If the note is converted, the convertible bond
reserve, together with the carrying amount of the
liability component at the time of conversion, is
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the note is
redeemed, the convertible bond reserve is released
directly to retained profits.

Other convertible notes

Convertible notes which do not contain an equity
component are accounted for as follows:

At initial recognition the derivative component of
the convertible notes is measured at fair value and
presented as part of derivative financial instruments
(see note 3(e)). Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the derivative
component is recognised as the liability
component. Transaction costs that relate to the
issue of the convertible note are allocated to the
liability and derivative components in proportion to
the allocation of proceeds. The portion of the
transaction costs relating to the liability component
is recognised initially as part of the liability. The
portion relating to the derivative component is
recognised immediately in income statement.

The derivative component is subsequently
measured in accordance with note 3(e). The liability
component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. The interest expense recognised in income
statement on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method.

If the note is converted, the carrying amounts of
the derivative and liability components are
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the note is
redeemed, any difference between the amount paid
and the carrying amounts of both components is
recognised in income statement.
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3.

48

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 3(g)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.

Employee benefits

i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 {2 — L+ F=A=1+—HIFFE
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

Employee benefits (Continued)

ii)

Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the income
statement for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained profits).
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3.

50

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

()]

Employee benefits (Continued)
iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in income statement except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised directly in equity, in
which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 {2 — L+ F=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.
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3.

52

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()]

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 {2 — L+ F=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in income
statement on initial recognition of any deferred
income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in income
statement over the term of the guarantee as
income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance
with note 3(q)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee, and (i) the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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3.

54

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

ii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

(r) Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in income
statement as follows:

i) Revenue from the production of
broadcasting programme

Revenue arising from the production of
broadcasting programme is recognised when
production is completed and the master copy is
delivered at the customers’ premises which is taken
to be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the master copy and the related risks
and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 {2 — L+ F=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Revenue recognition (Continued)

i)

i)

iv)

Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when
goods are delivered at the customers’ premises
which is taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in income statement in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.
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3.

56

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

®

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the
fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximately the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired on
or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised directly in a separate component of equity.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign operation
acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of
the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences recognised in equity which
relate to that foreign operation is included in the calculation
of the profit or loss on disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in income statement in the
period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group
or exercise significant influence over the Group in
making financial and operating policy decisions, or
has joint control over the Group;

ii) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

i) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a
close family member of such an individual, or is an
entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

V) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

Vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.
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3.

58

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

v)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment
information as the primary reporting format and
geographical segment information as the secondary
reporting format for the purposes of these financial
statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that
segment. For example, segment assets may include
inventories, trade receivables and property, plant and
equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that such intra-
group balances and transactions are between group
entities within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is
based on similar terms as those available to other external
parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible
and intangible) that are expected to be used for more
than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax balances,
corporate and financing expenses.
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4,

TURNOVER 4. HEXEH
The Group is principally engaged in the media-related business, REBTZELEH % BiEE
including broadcasting, publishing and multi-media product trading B EBREREEREREEXL
business.
Turnover represents income from broadcasting business and sales EXEBEEREB 2 BMARRABEFHE
value of multi-media products sold to customers. The amount of ZEBERCHEE FRERAE:?
revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows: HoWE=HRBOAT:
2007 2006
—ZE+F —ZTETX
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Broadcasting business BB 22,015 26,223
Publishing and multi-media i R K2 2% 15 88 2= o
product trading business BEEXE 10,035 24,909
32,050 51,132
OTHER REVENUE 5. Hftlhz
2007 2006
—EE+F —ETRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest income from bank deposits RITFERZFERA 75 104
Interest income on other receivables Hoh fE W RIE 2 BB A
(note 35() (H7&#35()) - 1,000
Rental income from leasing of MAREZHEESWA
motor vehicles 252 182
Rental income from sub-letting of SHEERMES
rented premises He A 233 =
Others HAt 778 665
1,338 1,951
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OTHER NET (LOSS)/INCOME 6. Hfh(FEB) BWARE
2007 2006
—EZLF —EERF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Loss on sale of fixed assets HEBTEEEZ J% B (76) (680)
Net realised (loss)/gain on BEFSF B ET
trading securities (&B8) Hﬂlfm/? ] (2,476) 3
Net unrealised (loss)/gain BEERBHF 2 REL
on trading securities * (BB Hﬁlmﬁ* B (42,455) 6,137
Expense arising from guarantee RATEE R RIIREERAS
to an ex-associate (note 35(g)) Mz (HfaE35(g)) - (2,717)
(45,007) 2,743

Included in the net unrealised (loss)/gain on trading securities for
the year ended 31 March 2007 is an unrealised loss of
HK$42,455,000 (2006: an unrealised gain of HK$6,166,000)
arising from remeasurement of the fair value of the Group’s

investments in NextMart Inc. at the balance date.

BHE - TZZ+F=A=+—HItHE
B-EEESF2AEE (BB WS
FEARNGEERENFEAER
M NextMart Inc. By &R & A FEFTEH
AR E 18 42,455,000T (=&
TN AF R IR I35 8 %5 6,166,000

JL) °
7. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 7. BRBAEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRERIEEEINR, GTA) TH&E:
2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFT B FT
(@) Finance costs (a) ®BEKAEK
Interest on bank borrowings ARAFRNEHEEREZ
wholly repayable RITEERNE
within five years - 6
Interest on convertible bonds AR ESR 2 F B - 5
Finance charges on obligations BEMHEAEZ
under finance leases BMEBM 29 29
29 40
(b)  Staff costs (including b) EBIRKX
directors’ remuneration) # (BEEEM2) #
Contributions to defined 7E B FUR K
contribution retirement plan T8l Z 126 310
Equity-settled share-based LA BR 2N 4 & R 19
payment expenses BT B 14 41
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITERHEMETR 6,522 11,420
6,662 11,771
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7. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 7. BREBAEE (&)
2007 2006
—ETLHF TR
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
()  Otheritems H1E g
Amortisation of land lease premium FRE £ b (E 8 - 7
Depreciation # ITE
— assets held for use under —REBELEHE
operating leases BEFERCEE - 20
— other assets —HEMEE 5,583 6,759
Net foreign exchange loss SNPE B5 185 KR 128 7
Auditors’ remuneration % B R BN & 303 300
Operating lease charges: KEMEES
minimum lease payments MEBESH
in respect of property rentals =EEE 3,416 2,624
Cost of inventories FEHRAR 28,086 43,594
# For the year ended 31 March 2008, cost of inventories # HE-ZZTNF=A=+—
includes HK$5,481,000 relating to staff costs and HIEFE FERABES
depreciation expenses, which amount is also included #5,481,0007T 2 #8 @ 8 T
in the respective total amounts disclosed separately AERFTERT - ZHBNTS
above or in note 7(b) for each of these types of expenses. BT AE B R £ 323k R B 5
TOEEMNSHEBERAT S
o
(d  Impairment loss on amounts due from disposed (d EBREHENBLITAREAZRE

subsidiaries

In view of uncertainty of the recovery of the outstanding
balance in that the subsidiaries disposed of during the
year were in financial difficulties and sustained losses, the
directors concluded that it is appropriate to make a full
impairment on the amounts of HK$21,943,000 due from
these debtors and subsequently write off the amounts in

full during the year ended 31 March 2007.

EER

HRFRAEREZHBAREH
BN E RIS EEE WEARTE
AkEEBERF AIEEER
BREEZSEEBERSEK
21,943,0007T & U B - I 72 &L
E_ZTT+F=-—F=1+—HItHF
EE2HMEZENRA-
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8.  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 8. HREWBZRZFES
STATEMENT
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) HeWzZERAZBIERE:
represents:
For the year ended 31 March 2007, no provision for Hong HE-_ZTT+F=-A=+—HIE
Kong profits tax has been made as the Group has no FE - BARAEEBRF AN EMG
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during ST AR ERDUS ) Bt W AE
the year. For the year ended 31 March 2006, no provision LBEBHEHEE - BHEZZE
for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group ANE=ZA=+—HLEFE AR
has accumulated tax losses brought forward which exceed REBEENZAFIABESR
the estimated assessable profits for that year. F R EFT R B a A - B £ 1
HBEER G-
No provision for overseas taxation has been made as the HREBEEZZTLFER-ZFTETN
overseas subsidiaries has no estimated assessable profits FZA=1+—HILFEBINNE
arising from their jurisdictions during the years ended 31 N EEE BB Al AR & N AR T
March 2007 and 2008. JE AR B 5 I - B AR B N
TR
(b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BEIHHERBEABEHEZ
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: BFEREEREOT:
2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEFT B TFT
Loss before taxation BR %% Al 5 18 (67,017) (36,510)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, BREAIEIE 2 B &EFHIE
calculated at the applicable ZiE AR 33%TE
rate of 33% (22,116) (12,048)
Tax effect of non-taxable income EARBmMAZ B IGHE (8,723) 4,311)
Tax effect of non-deductible T T MBS B2 M8
expenses 19,439 8,777
Tax effect of unused tax REERA @J AFEBE
losses not recognised BB E 418 2,448
Tax effect of additional tax deduction  EESMIR TR IE 2 G & 37 1,141
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax ~ EVFA A R FERAE A E
losses not previously recognised BREZHMETE - (24)
Effect of different taxation rate H b B AR li A
used in other tax jurisdictions MEZE 10,611 4,518
Others Hih - (501)
Actual tax expense ERHIES H - =
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2007

9. EEMS

RIBFFE LR EHERDIE16115IKE 2 EFM
LW

BE-—ZSZtF=-A=1+—HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
Directors’ and benefits scheme payments 2007
fees in kind contributions Sub-total (note i) Total
e 2R RARR ZBBLF
0k BYER RBRAKGTEHER et (H i) Bt
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
BT BETF T BT BETF T BT BETF T
Executive directors BiTES
Chen Ping " ¥ - 1,080 12 1,002 - 1,002
Ma Jian Ying BER - 720 12 732 - 732
Walter Stasyshyn Walter Stasyshyn - 503 - 503 - 503
Man Ming X H - - - - - -
Tung Hsiao Chi B\ - 300 - 300 14 314
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Chu Yu Lin, David KRB 120 - - 120 - 120
Yan Tat Wah, Joseph HEE 120 - - 120 - 120
Deng Jordan Z. & 100 - - 100 - 100
340 2,603 24 2,967 14 2,981
Year ended 31 March 2006 BE_Z22AE=A=1+—-HLEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
Directors’ and benefits scheme payments 2006
fees inkind  contributions Sub-total (note i) Total
He ORRR BAE®R  ZEEREF
2ok EWEN  RIREEGT et (Ht i) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Executive directors BTES
Chen Ping R T - 1,170 12 1,182 - 1,182
Ma Jian Ying BER - 780 12 792 - 792
Walter Stasyshyn Walter Stasyshyn = 576 = 576 = 576
Man Ming X H - - - - - -
Tung Hsiao Chi B/ - 780 = 780 41 821
Yang Lan % R
(resigned on 6/12/2005) (R=—ZZhE
+ZA~BET) - - - - - -
Ke Lin il R
(resigned on 22/4/2005) (R=—ZZTHF
WA=+ =HET) - - - - - -
Independent BUEHTES
non-executive directors
Chu Yu Lin, David KRB 120 - - 120 - 120
Yan Tat Wah, Joseph HEE 120 - - 120 - 120
Deng Jordan Z. & 63 - - 63 = 63
Woo Chia Wei RRE
(resigned on 5/11/2005) (R=—ZZThE
+—AABER) 71 - - 71 - 71
374 3,306 24 3,704 41 3,745
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9.

10.

64

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Note:

i) These represent the estimated value of share options granted to
the directors under the Company’s share option scheme. The
value of these share options is measured according to the Group’s
accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as set
out in note 3(o)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes
adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years where
grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms
and number of options granted, are disclosed under the
paragraph “Share option scheme” in the directors’ report and
note 28.

ii) For the years ended 31 March 2007 and 2006, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Company or as a compensation for
loss of office. None of the directors waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration for the years ended 31 March 2007 and 2006.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2006:
four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other one
(2006: one) individual are as follows:

9.

10.

EEME (&)
Hf iz -

i) B RABEAIRIEA R R B RS S
BTEEsBREGAHEER ZSE
P 2 B (B T AR 9% B 5 3(0) (i) P 38 A
BN RRZ 2R EE &K
KRt 8 BRBZBE - BHEET

B AERMKBRATAERBANE
RUMELENBEFE R RHEH
B

ZEBEDN @R 2 FE (BREEEGRR
ERELBREZEB) ERERES
WG [BRES] —BRRME
Be

i) BE-_TZ+ER-_ZTTAE=A
=+ HLEFESF AEETES
Ne TERNES EAEEMASK
B A0 7R 5 B Y 58 h = Bt B 12 o AR
E_ETTLER_FTEF=A=
+T—HALFE YEEEHEIAE
HEHME-

REHFAL

EE&ESHALTH OF (ZTTREF:
Mg RES EMESC R EoRE-
E—R(CEERF —B) AL zBE
M

2007 2006

—EELF —EERFE

HK$’000 HK$000

BEF T BT T

Salaries and other emoluments e & E b 360 672
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET SR 12 12
372 684
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10.

11.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 10. EEHF AL (&)
The emoluments of the one (2006: one) individual with the highest —Z(ZEERF —R)EaFALTZ
emoluments are within the following band: BN T A TEE:
2007 2006
—EELHF ZETRF
Number of Number of
individual individual
AE AZ
Nil — HK$1,000,000 & 1 Z 7T & % #1,000,0007T 1 1
For the years ended 31 March 2007 and 2006, no emoluments HE_ZZLHFR_FTTF=A=+
were paid by the Group to any of the five highest individuals as —BLEFE XEBRELEL M THE
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a AN ZEFAT EREFENARE
compensation for loss of office. N 7S £ [ 9 52 8D ok i B3t A (E o
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE 1. XRAFAEBRFEAEBLESER

COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company includes a loss of HK$80,520,000 (2006: a loss of
HK$38,453,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 27(b)).

RAREREIZBAEBGGREEBERREES
BB 180,520,000 (ZEZ NF
18785 38,453,0007T) ' Z B EE R K
NAZHBRERIE (K aF27(b)) °
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12

13.

66

LOSS PER SHARE
(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
loss attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$67,017,000 (2006: HK$36,510,000) and the weighted
average of 556,037,000 ordinary shares (2006:
490,538,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.
Weighted average number of ordinary shares is calculated
as follows:

12.

BRER
(@ ESBREXER

EREARBEBIIBEAA RS
H AL E 1B 67,017,000
T (ZZZRF B %36,510,000
JT) &EWE%G%@H&M%%@
556,037,000k L@ (=T
7~ £F 1 490,533,000/% & 3 A% ) +
Ho L@ NI IR 155 =

E
2007 2006
—EZLF —EETRF
‘000 "000
Fhre Fhz
Issued ordinary shares at 1 April REOA—HE#®TERAR 556,037 23,223,960
Effect of shares issued upon R RS & 5 8
conversion of convertible bonds BEETRMDZEZE - 580
Effect of capital reorganisation BAREHZZE - (22,759,619)
Effect of shares issued HELERITRN T E
through placing - 19,709
Effect of shares issued WM B A A 31T
for acquisition of a subsidiary &z & - 5,903
Weighted average number of R=ZR=+—HEZEAERKN
ordinary shares at 31 March hn#EFE 8L 556,037 490,533

(b) Diluted loss per share

No disclosure of diluted loss per share for the years ended
31 March 2007 and 2006 is shown as the exercise prices
of the outstanding share options of the Company during
the years are higher than the average market prices of the
ordinary shares of the Company and accordingly there
are no dilutive effect on the basic loss per share.

SEGMENT REPORTING
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business and geographical segments. Business segment

information is chosen as the primary reporting format because
this is more relevant to the Group’s internal financial reporting.
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13.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Business segments

The Group comprises the following main business segments:

Broadcasting and content production: the production of

broadcasting programmes.

Publishing and multi-media product trading: the trade of multi-

media products.

Broadcasting and
content production

13.

TEBE (H)

ik
AEBBEUATEIZXEB DR
EEREGE RF: EEE B RIE-

ﬁgﬁﬁ&i?}%i‘géu E\u%'? Z IR %f/%g%/%f’

5c:

Publishing and multi-

media product trading

Consolidated

ERERGEHE HEREREEREE o)
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
—EEiHF —ETRE —EEtHF —TERF —EEiHF —TERF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETFT BT BETFT BETT BETFT
Revenue from KRB
external customers TPz s 22,015 26,223 10,035 24,909 32,050 51,132
Segment result R E (15,221) (9,694) (6,038) (22,372) (21,259) (32,066)
Interest income FIBMA 75 1,104
Unallocated corporate Ot %
operating income mEWA 1,263 6,987
Unallocated corporate THft%
operating expenses LERY (47,067) (12,495)
Loss from operations T ER (66,988) (36,470)
Finance costs BMERA (29) (40)
Loss before taxation B B4R B 1R (67,017) (36,510)
Income tax FTig®t - -
Loss for the year FEER (67,017) (36,510)
Depreciation and amortisation 74 Z 47 &
for the year g £ 839 1,204 4,744 5,482 5,583 6,776
Unallocated depreciation and A% E & 5 EL £
amortisation for the year mEREH - = - - - 10
Impairment of TFEERE:
— fixed assets -BEEE - - - 1,136 - 1,136
- goodwill -HE - - 10,749 21,622 10,749 21,622
- broadcasting programmes  — B & &1 B - 5,297 - - - 5,297
— trade receivables — JEMRER TR 1,549 568 - - 1,549 568
Reversal of impairment loss ~ E ft fE g 5018
on other receivables HEEERL (3,333) (2,920) - 6] (3,333) (2,928)
Loss on sale of fixed assets  HEETEERBE 24 600 52 80 76 630
Unallocated net realised and EEBE#H 2 x5 E
unrealised loss/(gain) on BERRAEHR
trading securities BE/ () B8 - - - - 44,931 (6,140)
Significant non-cash expenses A &8 3E33 4 5 2
(other than depreciationand (T & &
amortisation) BN 1,549 5,865 10,750 22,758 12,299 28,623
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13.

68

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

Broadcasting and
content production

13.

TEBE (&)
%08 (&)

Publishing and multi-

media product trading

Consolidated

EERGERE HRRZEEERESR =E

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

—EELHF —EERF —EEtHF —EERF —EELE —EERF

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETFT BETFT BETFT BETFT BETFT BETFT

Segment assets NEEE 31,117 49,737 15,403 32,392 46,520 82,129

Unallocated corporate assets RAF(E & E 7,481 60,950

Total assets EERE 54,001 143,079

Segment liabilies SHEBE 39,995 58,579 10,495 8,570 50,490 67,149

Unallocated corporate liabilties 9 B (b % & (& 3,296 8,625

Total liabiities BEERE 53,786 75,774

Capital expenditure incured ~ FREL 7

during the year BARE 88 1,312 - 849 88 2,161

Geographical segments HhEDE

The Group’s business is managed on a worldwide basis, but
participates in three principal economic environments. Mainland
China is a major market for all of the Group’s business. In Hong
Kong and United States, the only business is publishing and

multi-media product trading.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments,
segment revenue is based on the geographical location of
customers. Segment assets and capital expenditure are based

on the geographical location of the assets.

AEBZEBBHERSH BEER
“EARBERREEEXH -FEAMB AN
SEMEXRGZEIEMS MAKEE
EEREENAREHRESERER

mME S RE2NNERE D BKE TR
BEEPHMEUESR D "*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BEARXAMERBEEZHEMES S

Mainland China Hong Kong United States Consolidated
HER BB % o)

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

“BBtE —TTF ZBBtE -TTRF C-BBLE ZTTNF ZBBtE —TTNF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETT EETr A%t E¥Fn BT BT BETx

Revenue from external customers RENREFE ZME 32,050 35,009 - 15,197 - 836 32,050 51,132

Carrying amount of segment assets ~ A EEAEEEME 26,548 52,513 27,453 90,566 - - 54,001 143,079
Capital expenditure incurred FREAZBRRAR

during the year 70 2,135 18 26 - - 88 2,161

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &
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14.  FIXED ASSETS 14. BEEE
The Group rE
Interests in
leasehold land
Office held for own
Buildings Plant furniture use under Total
held for Leasehold and and Motor operating fixed
own use improvements  machinery fixtures vehicles Sub-total leases assets
REgE
HERE
BEAR HE BAZE BRZHE EEEE
BT NE%EE BERHE HKERKE AE M t#ZFAE B
HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFIL BETT BETT BETT BEFIL BEFT BETT
Cost BA
1 April 2005 “EThENA—A 1,617 9,950 20,448 4,410 1,715 38,140 4,089 42,229
Exchange adjustments R AR - - 102 6 3 111 - 111
Additions NE - - 1,286 34 - 1,320 - 1,320
Disposals HE
- through disposal of subsidiaries - EBRHLENBAT - 87) (470) (34) - (591) = (591)
- others —Hfth (1617) (4,114 (534) (1,424) (312) (8,001) (4,089 (12,090
At 31 March 2006 and RZZERRE=A=+-H
1 April 2006 RZZZRFNA-B = 5,749 20,832 2,992 1,406 30,979 - 30,979
Exchange adjustments R AE - - 246 - - 246 - 246
Additions NE - - 70 18 - 83 - 88
Disposals HE
- through disposal of subsidiaries - EBRHLENRBAT - - - (190) (96) (286) = (286)
- others -Ef = - (989) - (150) (1,139 - (1,139)
At 31 March 2007 RZZR+E=A=+-H - 5,749 20,159 2,820 1,160 29,888 - 29,888
Aggregate amortisation and BRERNE:
depreciation:
At 1 April 2005 WZETRFMA—A 1,235 3,151 3,468 2,215 483 10,552 2,775 13,327
Exchange adjustments TS - - 47 3 1 51 - 51
Charge for the year FENK 3 2,452 3,638 443 243 6,779 7 6,786
Written back on disposals HERR
~ through disposal of subsidiaries - BRHENBARF - 82) (296) = = (378) = (378)
- others —Eft (1,238) (2,188) (377) (1,405) (312) (5,520) 2,782) (8,302)
Impairment loss AEES - - 50 1,024 62 1,136 = 1,136
At 31 March 2006 and RZZEE E=R=1—H
1 April 2006 RZZZ FEA—H = 3,333 6,530 2,280 477 12,620 3 12,620
Exchange adjustments EHAE - - 113 - - 113 - 113
Charge for the year FEMG - 2,230 3,020 151 182 5,583 = 5,583
Written back on disposals HERE
~ through disposal of subsidiaries —FBRNERBAF - - - (164) (96) (260) = (260)
- others —Ef - - (683) - (83) (766) = (766)
At 31 March 2007 R-ZZtF=A=1+-H = 5,563 8,980 2,267 480 17,290 - 17,290
Net book value BRI FE
At 31 March 2007 A\ZZTtF=A=+—-H - 186 11,179 553 680 12,598 - 12,598
At 31 March 2006 R=ZZEZRF=ZA=1—H - 2,416 14,302 712 929 18,359 - 18,359
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14.

70

FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

Fixed assets held under finance leases

The Group leases motor vehicles under finance leases expiring
in May 2009. At the end of the lease term the Group has the
option to purchase the leased motor vehicles at a price deemed
to be a bargain purchase option. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

At the balance sheet date, the net book value of motor vehicles
held under finance leases of the Group was HK$680,000 (2006:
HK$851,000).

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

In 2006, the Group leased out motor vehicles under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one year,
with an option to renew the lease after that date at which time all
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals. The motor vehicles leased out under operating leases
were disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2007.

At 31 March 2006, the net carrying amount of motor vehicles
leased out under operating leases of the Group was HK$78,000.

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
receivable as follows:

14.

BE&E (&)

Wi

(a)

(b)

RERMEHERACEEERE

AEBERBR _-_ZZAFARER
ZREHERRRE-REERER
BAREERERERESEREER
ZERE-HETERFEHAES-

REEH AKREREREEERS
Z 77 PR E R {E 73 78 %5 680,0007T
(ZZZ "4 :/8%851,0007T) °

BEKLEHEEHCEAEEE

R-ZTRF AEERBELEHE
HERE-ZEHE-—ROTRE—
FoAIRZAE R EEERHNA
B EMEN-HEREBER
KM -BREBELLEHEEHEB 2)REE

REBEE-ZZELF=A=+—HI
FEAEBL-

RIBZREF=ZA=+—H REK
EHEHL 2 ABEREFEREE
78,0007t °

REER AEEB BT HH 2 &
EHEEWIMHRRKERS LR
REWERRIAT

The Group
xE
2007 2006
—ETLF ZZTRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Within one year —FRN - 130

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &
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14.

15.

FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 14. BEEE (£)
(c) Impairment loss (c) REEIE
In 2006, the directors assessed the recoverable amounts of the RZZZERF ZEFETEWE K
property, plant and equipment. Based on this assessment, the B K& 45 2 ] U B 3R o 1R 1% it 5T
directors concluded that the carrying amount of the property, HEEREVE BERRKEBZE
plant and equipment should be written down by HK$1,136,000. T {8 78 #3078 #51,136,0007T © AT I
The recoverable amounts have been determined on the basis of ERECREFREBEFTEREM
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow BT -FMEFREBEHEREZARE
projections based on financial budgets approved by management EEEMMEZ AFETBBEE MK
covering a five-year period and a discount rate of 10%. Cash AEeRETER A R R10%#E
flow projections during the budget period for the property, plant T-EEHEOYE BERKER
and equipment are based on the expected gross margins during enERADRIEZHAMZERE
the budget period. Budgeted gross margins have been MEAE-FHEEMNEERBEBER
determined based on past performance and management’s REREBEHMSER CEHEE-
expectations for the market development.
In 2007, the directors assessed the recoverable amounts of the RZZETLF EFTRHEETEEZ
fixed assets and concluded that it is appropriate not to reverse AU E A - R A EE E 0] B 5KIE
the impairment loss as there has no favourable change in the 2 A ET A A A 4 2O B N B BRE
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The B8 Ty 6 i 2 22 o Al Y2 B 3R I8 Th iR fE
recoverable amounts have been determined on the basis of REBHE ZEIHERBEEE
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow It Er AFVBRERFTEE
projections based on financial budgets approved by management 0%t E 2R mETEMR -
covering a five-year period and a discount rate of 20%.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. | EE
The Group RKE
Copyright of book titles
EBZIRE
2007 2006
—EE2LF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
E¥TF T BT T
Cost and carrying amounts: RAREREE:
At 1 Apri RmA—A 841 -
Additions through acquisition of BRI B
a subsidiary (note 31(c)) NElmANE (F:#31() - 841
At 31 March R=A=+—H 841 841

(@)

The copyright represents a set of exclusive rights for the
Group to reproduce 115 educational book titles. The
copyright of book titles is amortised on a straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life from the date when it is
available for use. At the balance sheet, the copyright is
not available for use for the Group is applying to the PRC
government for approval in publishing the books in the
PRC. The approval is expected to be granted to the Group
before March 2008.

REEAEBEBEIAKE S
BZBREN - E B Wi i Al it
EAE B RABSER AT AIE
REHRNEH - BEEER A&
B 3 7E 7 7 B IR S B AR L TR
B R % SR B R
AAHER - AEERHER -
EENF=-RAAESE
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15.

16.

72

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

)

In 2006 and 2007, the directors assessed the recoverable
amounts of the copyrights of book titles and concluded it
is appropriate not to provide for impairment. As the
directors have not determined whether the Group will
allocate resources to fund and launch the business
development of these copyright of book titles in
accordance with the Group’s expansion plans, their
recoverable amounts in therefore determined with reference
to their respective estimated fair value less costs to sale
based on valuation assessed by an independent
professional valuer, the directors are of the opinion that
the recoverable amount of the copyright of book titles as
at the balance sheet date was higher than their carrying
value and no impairment loss is considered necessary.
The valuation of the copyright of book titles is performed
by RHL Appraisal Ltd., an independent valuer on an open
market basis in both 2006 and 2007 .

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

15.

16.

BEE (#)

(0)

R-IBZERER_ZFZTLF &
EEE B Wiz A Y E R0 -
RRTEKE R RERE AR
EESHAREAEEEERER
SEZHMRAEDEEERIAED
LAHMEBMEZEBER &
ERZERE 2 RERIET 2
ZHRANMEA R FEBREEKR
(REBBIBEXRGEMZEEN
E) MEERAHANE B RE
EREER 2 RERERRER
HE WBARKEE ZRERTH
HERE -EBREZGEHRS
MG ERI KM TRHERER AR A
AR-_ZBERFRE_ZZLEH
NEMEEE-

RMBARZRE

The Company

AT

2007 2006

—EELF ZEERF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BYEFT B TFT

Unlisted shares, at cost FE Em IR - A AR 59,499 59,499
Less: Impairment loss B BB E 18 (52,505) (238,212)
6,994 36,287

In view of the accumulated losses and poor operating
performance of a subsidiary, namely Tidetime Future
Optical Media Technology Limited (“Tidetime Future
Optical”), which is engaged in the business of multi-media
products trading in Hong Kong, the directors concluded
that it is appropriate to make an impairment of
HK$52,505,000 (2006: HK$23,212,000) for the investment
cost in this subsidiary.

The recoverable amount of the investments in subsidiaries
based upon which impairment loss is arrived at its value
in use at discounted rate of 20% (2006: 10%).

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

HRERBLENREZIEEE
mEEEKNNBRARRESH
KIEREER QG ([REBH
K BFEZSEBEEREERR
RiEHEEREEARTEAR
Al mEMNKAEIELEE
52,505,0007T (ZZ TN F B
23,212,0007T) Z R 1E °

12 E AW B2 B 2 TR OE
18 48 5 05 PR 16 12086 3 % 209% (=
TTAF10%) i H 2 A A
BT -
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

The following are details of the company’s subsidiaries
which principally affected the result, assets or liabilities of
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary shares

unless otherwise stated.

16. RMBERARAZKRE (&)

b) TEBREEBHEFEEEA
AESBEZHBAARLE B
SA BN RGBS A
%A

Proportion of ownership interest

BRI
Place of Particular
incorporation of issued Group’s
and and paid-up effective Held by the Held by Principal
Name of company operation capital interest Company subsidiary activity
BRTR
AR 3L R BRe MAEE MAAR  HNELH

NRER mEmE EXEHR EREE el BE TE#ER

Profit Trade Developments British Virgin Islands 1 share of 100% = 100%  Investment
Limited (“BVI") US$1 each holding

RBRRES —REE BREER
(EXEE]) e )

Shanghai New Culture TV PRC Registered 48% = 48%  Production of
And Radio Making H capital television
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai RMB5,000,000 programmes
New Culture”) (note) HREAR and sales of

PR ERER R AR #5,000,0007T multi-media
BRAR ([ EEFHE]) products

(Hizt) EHE A 8E
RHESHE
BEM
STR Media Limited BVI 1 share of 80% - 80% Investment
BRES US$100 each holding
—BREE REZR
1003 7T 2 B 17

Sun Television Cybernetworks ~ BVI 1 share of 100% = 100% Inactive

Developments Limited BRES US$1 each FmeEx
—REE
e )
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16.

74

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

16. RMEBRARAZRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

BEELS
Place of Particular
incorporation of issued Group’s
and and paid-up effective Held by the Held by Principal
Name of company operation capital interest Company subsidiaries activity
BERTR
AR BR mAEE mMADR  HMEAH
AR ER REwH EXER EREE L) ¥E TEER
Sun Television New Media BVI 1 share of 100% - 100% Investment
Limited BHEHE US$1 each holding
—REEIET REEK
2R
Sun Television Group Limited BVI 1 share of 100% 100% - Investment
BHEE US$1,000 each holding
—REE REER
1,000% T
bl <)
Tidetime Future Optical Media ~ Hong Kong 1 share of 100% = 100% Inactive
Technology Limited &5 US$10,000 each TEEE
REENAERERAA — ik E{E10,000% T
bl <)
Treasurepoint Limited BVI 1 share of 100% 100% - Inactive
BHEHE US$1 each Emez
—REEIET
2R
Note: Bt &t -

Shanghai New Culture is registered under the laws of the PRC
as a sino-foreign equity joint venture on 24 November 1998 to
be operated for 20 years up to 23 November 2018.

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

EEFXIER—AANE+—A=
+ B R B EE R A AN A
Ao AEE-TFE-FT-NT

+—A=+=H1-
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17. GOODWILL 17. BE
The Group
rE
2007 2006
—EE+F —ETRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
Cost: AR
At 1 April RYA—H 57,989 54,805
Additions — publication in ANE — P EIAH 2 AR
Mainland China (note 31(c)) (K1z£31(c))
- 3,184
Disposals — trading of cultural related HE—FREAM 2
multi-media products in X EEZREERER
Mainland China
(8,685) -
At 31 March W= A ==l 49,304 57,989
Accumulated impairment losses: ZtREEFE:
At 1 April K A—H 44,056 22,434
Impairment loss — trading of multi-media ~ JREEE —&FE 2
products in Hong Kong ZIEREEREER 10,749 21,622
Write back on disposals — trading of HEREE — R E A2
cultural related multi-media products ML REERER
in Mainland China (8,685) -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 46,120 44,056
Carrying amount: FREE:
At 31 March R=A=+—AH 3,184 13,933
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17.

76

GOODWILL (Continued) 17. B8 (&)
Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing BEEBzRSEEENRERNR
goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units identified PMERBEEBIBEREERNRSIRER
according to business segment and country of operation as SEZEHAIE i% =R VA
follows:
2007 2006
Z2BtE —ZZRRE
Broad- Broad- Trading of
casting and casting and cuttural related
content Trading of content  Trading of multi-media
production multi-media Publication production - multi-media  Publication  products in
in Mainland products in in Mainland inMainland  productsin in Mainland ~ Mainland
China Hong Kong China China  Hong Kong China China
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c)) Total (note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c)) (note (d)) Total
i
ERERE  EEEN EHRE R EER abukopdld
HEER SER EPERY HEER NZER ETERN BBSEE
HARE ERER # R HRRE EREE HifR EREE
(W) (Wzp)  (KaEc) @ (Wae)  WEw)  Wae)  (KE) st
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
BT EERTRT BT E¥TR BETn BMTn BNTn B¥Tn BETR
Cost KA 13,749 32,371 3,184 49,304 13,749 32,371 3,184 8,685 57,989
Accumulated impairment loss ZERERKR (13,749)  (323M) - (61200  (13,749) (21,622 - (8685)  (44,056)
Carrying amount EHfE - - 3,184 3,184 = 10,749 3,184 - 13,933
(a)  Broadcasting and content production in Mainland (a) EBEREEREHKK:
China (Cost: HK$13,749,000; Impairment: 78 #13,749,0007T ; &

HK$13,749,000)

Due to the poor performance of the cash-generating unit,
in 2005 the directors concluded that the cash-generating
unit was no longer able to generate sufficient cash flows
to the Group and a full impairment of HK$13,749,000
was therefore recognised in that year. In 2006 and 2007,
the directors reassessed the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit and concluded that it is appropriate
not to reverse the impairment loss as there has been no
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the

recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated rates stated below. The
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the business in which the cash-generating unit

operates.

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

18 : /& #13,749,000.T )

HRBEEEEEMNRIBRE
55 :g§£¢ i%uu
ZHREELEBMNE TS
ZKE@FiE%UEEiML
E AMREABRREH
mﬁﬁéﬁ%s 749,0007T °
—EERFER_ET+
FEEEHAEZE S
BE A BB /Y B] U [B] 5ROIB
R A LA E A) U B 30IE
B ey &1 2 4 ) oF 85 8 - it
WL\EIT}E%@A&{EEH?EO

ReEESE ME”J—M&Z@M
Iﬁﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁf‘iﬁ
u/<—rn @%*E}J%EEE
Ptz A M BRTRE
mE /IR S mE T80 -
BRHFHNRSRERT
FI il 5 b o ol o 1B R X
Wi AR B IR S EE A BT
MEEB Y RPTFIHEE
Ko
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17.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill (Continued)

(a)

(b)

17. B8 (&)

BEHBZRSELEMRENR

(%)

Broadcasting and content production in Mainland (a) EERIAERE (KX BY
China (Cost: HK$13,749,000; Impairment: 13,749,000 ; & {8 : /& ¥
HK$13,749,000) (Continued) 13,749,000¢) (#&)
Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations: ARERABEFENEE®RK:
2007 2006
—EELHE —EER
% %
— Gross margin —EF = 10 10
— Growth rate —ERX -15 -10
- Discount rate — IR K 20 10
Management determined the budgeted gross margin EEEREATRIEALES NS
based on past performance and its expectation for market BRIBEHETEEEMNEK B
development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and AR E B AITIR X 0] it
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments. HES>ENE TR R
The impairment loss recognised during the year solely FARRHBEBEEBANETSE
relates to the Group’s broadcasting and content production ERBERMEERERETE RE
activities based in Mainland China. As the cash generating EE o RMRZIREELEEMD R
unit has been reduced to its recoverable amount, any E=aT OB BRErE Ak
adverse change in the assumptions used in the calculation 5] 5% I8 A {8 5% HS 2R {A] A~ 7l 4 2
of recoverable amount would cause the carrying value to e E AR E KR A Y E &
be less than the recoverable amount. I§ o
Trading of multi-media products in Hong Kong b) HEEBHNZEREEZEE (K
(Cost: HK$32,371,000; Impairment: HK$32,371,000) K : B #32,371,0007T ; i 1E :
& #32,371,000.)

In 2006, due to the changes in technology and
deteriorating market conditions resulting in poor
performance in this cash-generating unit, the directors
assessed the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit and concluded it is appropriate to impair the carrying
amount of the goodwill by HK$21,622,000. In 2007, the
directors assessed the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit and concluded that it is appropriate to
make a further impairment of HK$10,749,000 due to
adverse changes in the technology and market conditions
during the year. The recoverable amount is its fair value
less costs to sell which is determined on the basis of past
performance and management’s expectations for the
market development.

—ETARFE AR EE RN
B E B IR EE BN
REXRE BEFZEFFHLERS
EXBEuza BB RE RERE
HEEZEEBERMESE
21,622,000t R — T+ F &
E GRS ELE SN 2 AR E R
TH - R BB E AR R TSk
M EEEEZEREEESR
B 7 #10,749,0007T ° A] 4 [@ 3%
BADTFEREEKAHEK
ANBEBERRAEEEEEM
LERZBHEBEE-
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17.

78

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill (Continued)

(b) Trading of multi-media products in Hong Kong
(Cost: HK$32,371,000; Impairment: HK$32,371,000)
(Continued)

The impairment loss recognised during the year solely
relates to the Group’s trading activities based in Hong
Kong. As the cash-generating unit has been reduced to
its recoverable amount, any adverse change in the
assumptions used in the calculation of recoverable amount
would cause the carrying value to be less than the
recoverable amount.

(c) Publication in Mainland China (Cost: HK$3,184,000;
Impairment: Nil)

In 2006 and 2007, the directors assessed the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit and concluded that it
is appropriate not to provide for impairment. The directors
have not determined whether the Group will allocate
resources to fund and launch the business development
of the cash-generating unit in accordance with the Group’s
expansion plans, the recoverable amounts is therefore
determined with reference to its fair value less costs to
sell based on valuation assessed by an independent
professional valuer. The valuation is performed by RHL
Appraisal Ltd., an independent valuer, on an open market
basis in 2006 and 2007.

(d) Trading of cultural related multi-media products in
Mainland China

Due to the poor performance of the cash-generating unit,
in 2005 the directors concluded that the cash-generating
unit was no longer able to generate sufficient cash flows
to the Group and a full impairment of HK$8,685,000 was
therefore recognised in that year. In 2006, the directors
reassessed the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit and concluded that it is appropriate not to reverse
the impairment loss as there has been no favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. The cash-generating unit was disposed of in
2007.

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

17.

B (&)

BEeHEZRSELAEMRENR

(%)

(b)

(c)

(d)

EEBHWZEEEREE (K
ZK: 832,371,000 ; B 1E :
B 32 371,000T) (&)

RERER REBBERANE
BREECEEXKEM BN
ReELEMNEREREREA
Y [l 5138 - # AR Y AT 5 AT U = R
B2 BRREREMANES S 5
HEREES R AR ERE-

TE B B Pt B9 HE AR (R K - 7
3,184,000t : & {& : #&)

RZEEREFR-TTELFE &F
EH AR & E L B AR A] U E
B RAEBAEHRERE-ES
WRREAEBEEHRERIA
RIEAEE 2 HRHEE B M
WMZBSELBMNZXBEE
AT YR Bl FRIB T 2 A B R
ERAREIE L BEGERM (G
B E o (A8 B B 3 B B ok 7
THEBEMERATNR-ZZEZN
FR_ETLFRAMAMEE
1Te

7E 5 B A 3 1Y X AL 16 B = 1R B8
EmBEE

HERReEEEBMNRARE &
ER—_ZTERFREZBESELE
BUBTHERALNEBELZHR
CHRE BMRZFERBK
8,685,000 Z ZEURE RN =2
ERF EFETIEZEEE
ABEMzKREIZE RERE
TE A] Y7 [B] FRIB 2 5 5T 30 & A1) 47 8
WM ERLREEE - ZRE
EXBNER_ETELFHE-
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17.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill (Continued)

(d)

Trading of cultural related multi-media products in
Mainland China (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated rates stated below. The
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the business in which the cash-generating unit
operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

17.

B (&)

BEHBZRSELEMRENR

(%)

(d)

7E 5 B R 3 B9 X AL 16 B 2 1R B8
EREHE (&)

ReELBEMHAKEFKIATIR
BEREBEFE -ZFHEER
RIBE IR E AR A I F BB K
BEMENRESRERN -BE
IFEHNBSRER TG
K- REXT@HBBARTE
BT R 2 R 19I8

AREREEFENEZRE:

2006

—FTN
%
— Gross margin —FEF =X -
— Growth rate —BRR %
— Discount rate — IR X 10

Management determined the budgeted gross margin
based on past performance and its expectation for market
development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

The impairment loss recognised during the year solely
relates to the Group’s wholesale and retail activities based
in Mainland China. As the cash generating unit has been
reduced to its recoverable amount, any adverse change
in the assumptions used in the calculation of recoverable
amount would cause the carrying value to be less than
the recoverable amount.

EEEREBERRAMEEMGERZ
BHEEREEMN R -FMMANRESH
AT R RRARE D B ERR-

FABAMEBREEASEETER
WHHBELRZTEXKEB - ARNZRE
EAEEM D IREE A F 0 E A Y= 5K
B AR EAIRERENRR LR
AR 88 2 15 & 38 20 Bk T (B EC A0 R U
[B] 5% 38 -
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R—FRBE AR ZHER
The Group
A%EE
2007 2006
—EBLF S
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BETT
Share of net assets DMEBEEFE - =
(@) The particulars of the associate which is an unlisted @ ZEBIELMEEEEBZBED
corporate entity are as follows: RIGEIBAN R :
Proportion of
ownership interest
BERELH
Place of Particulars of Group’s Held by Held by
incorporation issued and effective the a Principal
Name of associate and operation paid up capital interest Company subsidiary activity
&L BRAR HEKE BFAE HKREAR
BENRER R it 2 HREAZEN EBEEES BE BE TEEE
Sun Satellite Television Hong Kong 10,000 30% = 30% Inactive
Company Limited BE ordinary shares Tmex
(“Sun Satellite”) of HK$1 each
BrEEERERAR 10,000k R EE
(MEXEE]) BEAT EBR
()  Summary of the financial information on Sun Satellite is as b) BAREEZVBERHMRAT:
follows:
2007 2006
—EBLF —EEAE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Assets BE - 10
Liabilities afE (3,197) (2,287)
Equity = (3,197) (2,277)
Revenues & - -
Loss for the year RFEEE (921) (13)

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &
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19. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 19. HMFERBUKEE
The Group The Company
A EE NS
2007 2006 2007 2006
—E2E2LF —TTRF ZEELE —ITITRF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

BMTFT BT T

BT BT T

Available-for-sale AHHEZ
equity securities BB 103 %
— Unlisted (note (a)) — 3t (Kfat@) 1 1 - -
— Listed outside Hong Kong — BB AIMBE
(note (b)) £ (M aEb) 1 1 1 1
Available-for-sale AHHEZ
debt securities BEFES
— Unlisted —JEETH 1 1 - _
3 S 1 1
Market value of listed tTRBARFZ
equity securities (hote (c)) & (Hitc) 2,086 75,889 334 12,168

Notes: Bt &t -

(@) Unlisted investments in securities are classified as available-for- (a) ARIELTEFEE()EERTIS
sale securities and carried at cost less impairment, if any, as (i) BEAEHAERATE H()ZFRE
they do not have a quoted market price in an active market to MEEBEQAFEGFEHEEREAN BEE
determine their fair value, or (i) the range of reasonable fair value B GBI RIAE M i3 L
estimates of investments is significant and the probabilities of MEFBREIBAIUHIBERS &
the various estimates cannot be reasonably assessed. ERAMBRBE (IE) 78K
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19.

82

OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

)

Available-for-sale equity securities listed outside Hong Kong
include the Group’s 15.1% (2006: 15.1%) and the Company’s
2.4% (2006: 2.4%) equity interest in Asia Premium Television
Group, Inc. (“ATVG”), a company incorporated in the State of
Nevada of the United States of America and its shares registered
with Over-The Counter Bulletin Board (the “OTCBB”) in the United
States of America.

In view of the objective evidence that (i) as at the balance sheet
date ATVG was incurred net current liabilities and net liabilities
that indicate ATVG was in financial difficulty and ATVG might
result in bankruptcy, and (ji) the ATVG’s shares were thinly traded
and the Group and the Company held a large number of ATVG’s
shares, the directors considered that the quoted market price of
ATVG on the OTCBB is not a reliable indicator of its fair value
and conclude that the investments in ATVG would not have real
value to the Group and the Company and thus it is appropriate
to carry the investments at nominal value of HK$1,000 after an
impairment of approximately HK$38,563,000 by the Group and
approximately HK$2,185,000 by the Company as the fair value
of the investments as at 31 March 2007 and 2006. An impairment
of approximately HK$38,563,000 by the Group and approximately
HK$2,185,000 by the Company on the investments were firstly
recognised in 2004 and 2005 respectively.

No transaction has taken place on 31 March 2007 and 31
March 2006. Market value of listed equity securities as at balance
sheet date is calculated with reference to the price of ATVG’s
shares quoted at the OTCBB in relation to the most recent
traded transaction close to the balance sheet date.

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

19.

(b)

HthERBUBEE (&)

REBAINDE E7 2 ] 4 H &R
NEFBEAEERFFI51% (=T
TRNEF: 15 1%) BEREARRFEER

2.4% TRF 2.4%) RHEZ
Asia Premlum Television Group, Inc.
(TATVG]) *Z R AR EFEBRERE
REEFE M EMA S - T E R G EF
BERBSIBERR S ZS
(foTcBB)J ) sk fffe

HRHOATVGREE BB R B EF
& & EFEBRRATVGH I B K
IR # - AT RE B EE ¢ K (iATVGRL 1D 2 #%
B MAEERAQRFEARE
ATVGZ EmfH REERBATVG
ROTCBBH MISME L IFE A FE
Z A SERAZ MR E RATVGE A&
ERAARTEELEE MRS E
EEEAEERANDBINIEES
ol (B 4 75 #5 38,563,000 & 478 #5
2,185, oooﬂéaﬁﬁﬁ;‘%ﬁ%moooﬁ
EAER-_ZETLtER_TTNEF=
BE=1t—HMEREAFET R A&
BRARBNEBEEREBESD L
7 # 38,563,0007T N 4 B ¥
2,185,000t A R = F Ymﬂzf
TERAFERER

RZTET+LtF=A=+—HKRZ=Z
%\EEH +—BHIEETRFe
\VEEBARN ETMROESFMETTS
EATVGRH R OTCBBRIE I & E H
HEEEFTwESTHE
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20.

BROADCASTING PROGRAMMES 20. EEHH
The Group
rE

2007 2006

—EZF —EERF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BEFT BT T

Carrying amount at 1 April RUA—HZERE 34,569 25,404
Exchange adjustments bE 0 F & 1,877 847
Additions NE 3,388 37,463
Amortisation B iH (18,907) (23,848)
Impairment BB - (5,297)
Carrying amount at 31 March R=ZA=+—HBZ2KEE 20,927 34,569

@)

The broadcasting programmes is expensed to income
statement under cost of sales. The broadcasting
programmes are derecognised on (i) disposed of, or (i)
when no future economic benefits are expected from their
use or disposal.

As the balance sheet date, the gross carrying amount
and accumulated amortisation of the broadcasting
programmes were HK$36,752,000 (2006: HK$58,150,000)
and HK$15,825,000 (2006: HK$23,581,000) respectively.

As at the balance sheet date, the remaining amortisation
period of the broadcasting programmes with a carrying
amount of HK$20,927,000 was within twelve months.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the directors
assessed the recoverable amount of broadcasting
programmes and concluded that it is appropriate to make
an impairment of HK$5,297,000 and subsequently make
an write-off of the amount in full, in view of the fact that
there was deteriorating marketability, and that these
broadcasting programmes were not commercially viable
to generate sufficient cash flows to the Group. The
recoverable amount is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections
at the discount rate of 10%.

EREESBRHEERAR W am R
85 - EHE A0 B HO()H & B - 3K (i) B
HME'E%‘JZEEEFE% B T\AEZE

BEETNE BRRER
KEHE EENE 2 EEEE

FREEYE D AN AEBEK
36,752,000T (Z T ZT X F -
7 58,150,0007T ) K& B
15,825,0007T (ZZEET /N F B
23,581,0007T) °

R&EER  BR®RMBEBE
20,927,0007C 2 EHE &0 B 2 Fsk
BB A+T —_@ARN-

HE-_ZTF=A=+—HIt
EJ* %%Méﬁ‘ﬁ.ﬁﬁﬁazw&z
FIEE REHRNTEAREE
Tﬁﬁw ﬁ‘ﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂaﬁ
BELREALAEREETHR
& mE BUE R E B 5,297,000
T+ NP 8 BN 2 S 88 o AT 4R Bl 3R
TR EBEFEREEERETREI0% Y
RETBRTE-

Annual Report 2007 % 83



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & Y AL

For the year ended 31 March 2007 {2 —EE+F=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| (&)

21. TRADING SECURITIES 21. HBHERE

The Group and the Company

AEBEARAT
2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T B TFT
Trading securities (at market value) HHEH (BRTHE)
Listed equity securities LETRAE S
—in Hong Kong —RES - 49
— outside Hong Kong —REB AN R 6,207 53,366
6,207 53,415

R-ZZBEZEL+F=H=+—H T3ARA
ZHEGEFEAESBAAEERERARF
BEREZI1.4% (ZFZ/RF 37.2%)
K26.7% (ZEZFNF :52.1%) °

At 31 March 2007, the carrying amount of interest in the following
company represents 11.4% (2006: 37.2%) and 26.7% (2006:
52.1%) of the Group’s and the Company’s total assets respectively:

Particulars of issued

Proportion of

shares held by ownership interest
the Group and held by the Group
Name of company Place of incorporation  the Company and the Company Principal activity
rEEREAH
BFEZE®BT EEEREATZ
AEER RHER BRI TEEHK
2007 2006
—EELE ZTILTRE
NextMart Inc. (formerly known State of Minnesota, 1,624,131 1.7% 2.2% Outsourced brand
as Sun New Media Inc.) United States of (2006: 1,849,131) management and
NextMart Inc. America common shares of production center
(A1 & &SunNew MediaInc.)  EFIE & RBEHAEHEMN  US$0.01 each for apparel brands
FRMEBE.01ET SN Bl i R B R
2.1,624,1315% ERREERD
(Z2TRE:

1,849,131[%) LAk

84  Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={=k3 3¢ (£H) AR A 7
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

22, EZRHEHMEWKER

The Group The Company
rE RKAF
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELF —ZTTRF ZEBELF ZITITRF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Amounts due from JE U B B A R ZR I8
subsidiaries (note (a)) (Kiit@) - - 7,875 7,311
Amounts due from a related FEU — I REE A A
company (note (b)) KB (M Eb)) 1,014 = - =
Trade receivables (note (c)) H 5 AR
(Bt7E(c) 3,861 8,216 - =
Prepayments and deposits ENZEBERES 1,013 2,161 112 349
Other receivables (note (d)) H 4th e I BR 3k
(K7 a£(@)) 1,500 57 1,500 57
7,388 10,434 9,487 7,717
Notes: Hfat:
(a) Amounts due from subsidiaries (a) FEWH B A RRE
The Company
RAFE]
2007 2006
—g2tF —ETAE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE BT B A Rl FIE 241,545 260,652
Less: Impairment loss OB (233,670) (253,341)
7,875 7,311

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

In view of the subsidiaries, which sustained losses and had poor
operating performance, not financially capable of repaying to the
Company, the directors concluded that it is appropriate to make
an impairment of HK$233,670,000 (2006: HK$253,341,000), after
considering the profitability, financial positions, cash flows and
future prospects of these subsidiaries, and certain key

assumptions.

FEN KT B A R FIRT R R B R

HRZEMBRARFESRESEHER
BEXBRE WZEWE AT TR
BRERGEERTARR ALY BF
KEBZSEWB AR AT B
B RERE REAMT - URE
TEEBRE REEZSREWKE
A B FE VB % 233,670,0007T
(ZZZTRF ¥ 253,341,0007T)
Z B
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22,

86

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

Amounts due from subsidiaries (Continued)

Movements for impairment losses on amounts due from

subsidiaries are analysed as follows:

22.

EZRHMBERERR (4)

(a)

FE W R B A R 5R0E ()

KB AR KRB RERBEE
DM

The Company

AAF
2007 2006
—ETLHF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BYTF T BT T
At 1 April REA—H 253,341 240,648
Charge for the year REEZ K 2,272 16,395
Write-offs 3 55 (21,943) (3,702)
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 233,670 253,341

i) At 31 March 2007, impairment losses on amounts due

from subsidiaries by business segment are as follows:

) ROEFLF=A=+-—
B REH 2 BB
A RRERERADT

The Company

b N
2007 2006
—EELEF ZTTRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Broadcasting and content B KA B R
production 202,803 201,351
Publishing and multi-media DRk ZEEERER
product trading 30,867 51,990
233,670 253,341

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &
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22,

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Amounts due from subsidiaries (Continued)

ii) Impairment losses in relation to the subsidiaries engaged
in broadcasting and content production business and in
publishing and multi-media product trading business:

In 20086, the operating performance of those subsidiaries
engaged in the broadcasting and content production
and in publishing and multi-media product trading was
unsatisfactory due to intense competition. In 2007, in
the opinion of the directors, while the businesses
continued to operate, it is uncertain that sufficient cash
flows would be generated by the subsidiaries in the
foreseeable future as the subsidiaries were in financial
difficulties and sustained losses. On this basis, the
directors concluded that it is appropriate to make an
impairment of approximately HK$202,803,000 (2006:
HK$201,351,000) and HK$30,867,000 (2006:
HK$51,990,000) for the year ended 31 March 2007 on
the amounts due from the subsidiaries operating in the
broadcasting and content production business and in
the publishing and multi-media product trading business
respectively.

i) Write-offs:

In 2007, the write-offs refer to a sum of HK$21,943,000
due from the subsidiaries disposed of during the year as
referred to in note 31(a). As these subsidiaries are in
financial difficulties and sustained losses, the directors
concluded that it is appropriate to write off this amount.

In 2006, the write-offs represents the amount of
HK$3,702,000 due from Evergain Properties Limited. In
view of the fact that the subsidiary was in financial
difficulties and the Group applied for deregistration of
this subsidiary, the directors concluded that it is
appropriate to write off the amount.

Amount due from a related company

The amount due from £/ {bFHEKE (£B) R A A
(#1814 | ) is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
terms of repayment. 71X {t & is a subsidiary of a minority
shareholder of Shanghai New Culture TV And Radio Making
Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company.

The amount was repaid in full to the Company in June 2007.

22.

BEZRHMBERERR (4)

(a)

(b)

FEUS B A R RROE (48)

i) REERENEEEERSZ K
BERETEXBIMBLA
Rk (B 5 48 -

RZEERNF ARBEFH
R WREEBEREGE RAIEER
Hh Rk ZEEERES 2K
BAREERRAWMEE-
—ETFE ARKBAQR
LR BRRSRFEEIE
BEEHEBEELE JN
EEA TR AR5 R A B
BRARIGEEERHZEESR
E AL EERRERER
—ET+F=ZA=+—HI1t
FERUAEEEREAE S
EEBHEPIRREZ EEER
BB XK 2B DR ERR
B o R fE B OB
202,803,0007¢ (= & T X
& ¥ 201,351,0007T) &
# 130,867,0007T (ZEE
N B #651,990,0007T) 2
VERIER

i) HisH -

RZZEZLF RIEH T
31(a) + 84 3R B TR EUF A
FrHEKBARZRIEEE
21,943,0007T ° FH 1A 7% 5 T |8
AREEMHRE WES
RAMEMEEZRIE

MN-TTRF MEFKIERE
FEUOK M EBR A REE
3,702,0007T Z 3K 18 ° R 7%
=N Tl g ]
BAKEC RFERBEZME
RAZEM AEEERER
P& 1 4 5% IR ©

EWEELRARE

fEM L AL EERRE (KE) B
A ([HEEE]) 2 FERE
HAR - B R E B EE R - # 3UE
BEASLENXCEEREREIER
BRAR(RAFMBAR) 2 HK
RSB A A -

ZHRBEER_ZEEELFNARHE
BTARRA
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22,

88

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(c)

Trade receivables

An ageing analysis of trade debtors net of impairment losses for
bad and doubtful debts of HK$2,235,000 (2006: HK$686,000)
is as follows:

22.

EZRHMBERERR (4)

(c)

5 I WR

2 Bk B ¥2,235,000T (ZFF X
8 #686,0007T) RIZERMERER
ZEBESRWIRSRERE ST

The Group
rE

2007 2006
—EEtLF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T B TFT
Within 1 month —EAA - 3,913
More than 1 month but within 2 months ZR—ERERMEAR - 3,181
More than 2 months but within 3 months ZRMEAE=EAR 1,448 39
More than 3 months but within 6 months ZR=AEBSEAN 1,726 636
Over 6 months within 12 months ZRAERE+=ZHEAR 687 447
3,861 8,216
The Group allows a credit period normally ranging from 15 days REE—RHETESEF15KE180

to 180 days to its trade customers. The Group may, on a case
by case basis and after evaluation of the business relationship
and creditworthiness, extend the credit period upon customers’
request.

As at 31 March 2007, trade receivables of approximately
HK$2,235,000 (2006: HK$686,000) were determined to have
been impaired and full provision had been made, in light of the
fact that these trade receivables were long overdue for over one
year as at the balance sheet date without any settlement during
that year and remained outstanding, and/or were due from
debtors with financial difficulties.

No cash deposits had been placed by the related trade debtors
with the Group (2006: Nil).

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

RZEEH - NEBERZEIER
BRIZEREFPNEBREREER
R AEREFERMEREREH-

RZZEZLF=A=+—H HRY
ﬁéﬁ%z 235,0007C (ZZE T NF B
686,0007T) 2 ANEEE 5 & W R K
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(d)

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22, EFNREMEWERR (&)
Other receivables (d HibEKRE
The Group
&

2007 2006

—EEtE —ETRE

HK$’000 HK$’000

BEF T EMF T

Gross receivables FEURBR R4 E 1,500 3,390
Less: Impairment loss R EEE - (3,333)
1,500 57

(e)

As at 31 March 2007, other receivables of HK$1,500,000
represented the amount due from Mr. Kenneth Ma Hon
Wah. Further details are set out in note 34(b).

Movements of provision for impairment losses are analysed as
follows:

R-EEL+F=F=+—H H
fth J& U 5118 78 #1,500,0007T 8
FEU B B2 R £ R TE - A B &
HABIFES4(b) °

MEBBBEHEZZSOMAOT

The Group
E

2007 2006

—ETLF ZTTRF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

At 1 April REA—H 3,333 6,261
Reversal for the year AN [E A (3,333) (4,761)
Charge for the year AN E R - 1,833
(3,333) (2,928)

At 31 March R=A=+—8H - Bre83

In 2007, the directors concluded that it is appropriate to make a
reversal of impairment of approximately HK$3,333,000 (2006:
HK$4,761,000) on other receivables of the Group as the amounts
were considered to be fully recovered.

In 2006, the directors concluded it appropriate to make an
impairment of approximately HK$1,833,000, in light of the fact
that some of the other receivables were long outstanding for
over one year as at 31 March 2006 without any settlement
during that year and remained outstanding as at 31 March 2006,
and that some other receivables were due from debtors who are
having financial difficulties.

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered
within one year.

(e)

R-ZZBZLF HRANEEEMER
RERAEEBWE HEZRARE
7 [ 4 7 #53,333,0007T (ZE TN
¥ 4,761,0007T) Z B IE -

EZZTRFE BN D H b e
AR _BEERF=ZA=+—HEE
HiE R BB —F EFANETME
FBE_ZEZERE=A=+—81
KEE M2 EEKERIKRE
EYBRENEEAN MEERARE
E 3 1B 407 ¥ 1,833,0007T °

FEE S REMEWRRRBHATR
—FARYE-
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. RERERRELER
The Group The Company
rE KAF
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELE —ZETRFE ZEBBLE ZTEREF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
B FT BEEFIT B FT B TFT
Cash and deposits with banks, IR & KRITFEK"
denominated in T3 EESE
— Hong Kong dollars — B 704 4,932 547 4,816
- Renminbi —AR% 2,142 5,529 - -
- United States dollars — 7T 7 1,064 - -
Cash and cash equivalents BehERIKRLIEBEE 2,853 11,525 547 4,816
Cash and deposits with banks of HK$2,142,000 (2006: e MIRITHFRE2,142,0007T (=ZF
HK$5,529,000) are denominated in Renminbi, which is not a TN A 5,520,000 ) JThIA A REEE
freely convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of the B MARETA BB EBE EhRE
PRC is subject to the exchange control imposed by the PRC AN HY) [ U R B S B B AT
government. MR o
Deposits with banks are interest bearing at the prevailing market RITFERDIERIT I R B
rates.
24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24, EZRHMEMSER
The Group The Company
RE AAF
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EERLE ZETRFE ZEELE ZTIERF
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
BEFT ABEFT BT ABETT
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEST BB A R F IR
(note (a)) (K13z(@) - - 29,450 29,462
Amount due to a related e —EBERF]
company (note (b)) I8 (K atb) - 456 - =
Amounts due to directors AN
(note (c)) (K13E(c) 1,500 - 1,500 =
Trade payables (note (d)) 2 SR
(Bt 7 (d) 2,148 3,202 - -
Accrued charges JEsTE 19,620 24,098 7,722 7,704
Other payables H A FE 1 BR 3K 30,011 47,276 - =
53,279 75,032 38,672 37,166
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24,

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Amount due to subsidiaries

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment. A sum of HK$12,000
was repaid by the subsidiaries to the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2007.

Amount due to a related company

The amount due to It REBHREHREERER A
company controlled by Mr. Chen Ping (“Mr. Chen”) and l\/Is. Ma
Jian Ying (“Ms. Ma”), both of whom are directors of the Company;,
is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.
The amount was fully settled in May 2006.

Amounts due to directors

From September 2006 to December 2006, Mr. Chen and Ms.
Ma advanced to the Company HK$1,200,000 and HK$300,000
respectively of which HK$560,000 and HK$140,000 were repaid
to Mr. Chen and Ms. Ma respectively in February 2007. The
amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment. The amounts were repaid in full by
the Company in June 2007 .

In addition, on 1 January 2007, the Company, Mr. Chen and
Ms. Ma entered into an agreement whereby Mr. Chen and Ms.
Ma agreed to advance to the Company at an aggregate amount
of HK$700,000 on revolving basis. From January 2007 to March
2007, Mr. Chen and Ms. Ma advanced to the Company
HK$560,000 and HK$140,000 respectively. The amounts due
to directors are unsecured, interest-free and repayable after six
months from the date of drawdown. The amounts were repaid in
full by the Company in June 2007 .

24.

BEEREMENKRR (&)

EE

(a)

(b)

(c)

FE 1S B 188 2 R KR

FERTHT B AR BRI EER 28R
EEEEFRA-BE_ZTZTLF=H
=S+t -HLEFEHRBRARERAR
AfE&A £E%12,0007T -

ENf-—MREQRKRE

FETHE)?\,JJEH IHBEERBRD
Al(—HEARAREZEERF LA
(Hﬁf‘ﬁi”&%kﬁiﬁi“%ﬁ
T 1) ES 2 AT RIBIEEF R
EREREERH - ARAERE
ERNFRAEBRZERA.

ENEEHE

g—? 7/\£'Ej-LH;I:—7 7/\ﬁ5+
ZABREERBLETHRIAAR

# % 8 % 1,200,000 & B ﬁz
300,0007T - ifn £ A 7% ¥ 560,0007T &
140,000 E R RN T4
—ABETRAERSE LT ENE
E2REERE 28 REETE
FH-ARFER BT LFAE

B ERIA-

BN KRR REERELZLER =
EELE—F B HE Bt
BREERSLZLTREBEBALR ﬂﬂéﬁ%
B¥ A £EH700,000 B - TF
+tFE—RAE-_TTLF=ZA KL
EERLTZSRAAARBLEK
560,0007T K 7 #140,0007T ° fE < &
BB ERKER RS WERIR
HABANERAEE-ZEXECR
TELFENABRARRRIZHEE-
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24, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 24, BEFREMEMERNR (E)
(d) Trade payables (d) 85 BNERX
An ageing analysis of trade creditors as of the balance sheet REEHE B E 5 BN RRZ Kk
date is as follows: e
The Group
RE
2007 2006
—®ELE —EEAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 1 month —EARN 595 813
More than 1 month but ZR—EAEMEARN
within 2 months 1 139
More than 2 months but ZRMEARAE=EAR
within 3 months - 204
Over 3 months Hid=1EA 1,552 2,046
2,148 3,202
(€) Al of the trade and other payables are expected to be () FBEZREMENKRKIEEA
settled within one year. R—FAZfTe
25.  OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 25. MEHERE
As 31 March 2007, the Group had obligations under finance RZZBEZELF=A=+T—HB XxEEE
leases repayable as follows: BEZBREHEAENT
The Group
b NN
2007 2006
—EE2LF —ETEREF
Present Present
value value
of the Total of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEHES BE#HES =EHEE =EHEE
ZHRE HEE ZHE HAFE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B FT B FT BT T BT T
Within 1 year S N 234 263 235 NN 264
After 1 year but within 2 years —F & EBRFER 234 263 234 263
After 2 years but within 5 years MFZEBRFNR 39 44 273 307
__________ 2,3 %7 %0 570
507 570 742 834
Less: total future R A B
interest expenses S 42 %E (63) 92)
Present value of lease obligations 8 & #& &R (& 507 742
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26.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 6 June 2002 entered
into between the Company and Cosmos Media Investments
Limited (“Cosmos Media”) (the “Subscription Agreement”), the
Company granted Cosmos Media rights to subscribe for a series
of convertible bonds in an aggregate principal amount of up to
US$26,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$202,800,000)
in 3 tranches. On 9 July 2002, the subscription of the tranche 1
bonds (the “Bonds”) for the principal amount of US$6,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$46,800,000) was completed. The
Bonds are non-interest bearing and unless previously cancelled,
redeemed or converted, the convertible bonds would be redeemed
at 100% of the principal amount on 8 July 2005. Interest expense
on the Bonds is calculated using the effective interest method by
applying the effective interest rate of 10.45% per annum to the
liability components.

The holders of the convertible bonds have the right to convert
their bonds into the Company’s new ordinary shares at any time
during the period from 9 July 2002 to 8 July 2005. Up to 31
March 2005, the principal amount of US$5,800,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$45,240,000) and US$150,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,170,000) were converted into 560,630,000
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each and 97,181,250
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at a price of
HK$0.02 per ordinary share and HK$0.012 per ordinary share in
the capital of the Company respectively. During the year ended
31 March 20086, the Bonds in the carrying amount of HK$384,000
was converted into 32,473,750 ordinary shares of the Company
of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.012 per ordinary share in the
capital of the Company, after which all of the Bonds were
converted into the Company’s ordinary shares.

On 27 August 2002, Cosmos Media agreed to forfeit its rights to
subscribe for the tranche 2 and tranche 3 bonds under the
Subscription Agreement and the Company agreed to grant to
Cosmos Media an option (the “Option”) to subscribe for additional
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company for a total
value of US$4,000,000 at any time from 27 August 2002 up to
and including the maturity date of the Bonds on 8 July 2005 at
any of the actual conversion prices of the Bonds which the holders
of the Bonds have adopted as the conversion price of the Bonds
into the ordinary shares of the Company. Up to the date of
maturity of the Bonds on 8 July 2005, Cosmos Media has
exercised the Option of US$1,335,185 (equivalent to approximately
HK$10,413,000) to subscribe for the Company’s 867,462,611
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at a price of
HK$0.012 per ordinary share.

26.

TR ES

R AN A A B Cosmos Media
Investments Limited ( [ Cosmos
Media] ) R=ZZZT —F X A/NHF YK
RENE ([REHZE]) A2RE#
Cosmos MediapD =t ZE RS B E T
% 1 26,000,0003% jT (#) & KRB &
202,800,0007T) M AT ESF - — T F
—FEANB TRRBE A
%8 /56,000,000 T (WEREBE
46,800,0007T) MG ([EH]) % E
BEHATTE BBREATH ERKN
BN ZETBRBREFTR =TT HEF
+t ANBEAEEN100%EE - FEHH
MERTRERAEEZENBEDSINE
BREE R R 10.45%5 & -

AR EFFEEAEER-_ZET _F+
BNABE=-_ZTRFt A/\HHRHEERF
BAREESFLBAERQ RN LB
HE_ZZTRAF=-A=+—H &&8
5,800,000% 7T (H9FE & ¥ 45,240,000
gL ) & 150,000 ;T (HHE RN B &
1,170,00070) MEAHE D Rl SR LB
fe & 0.02c R B R EBARE®0.012
7T 3, ¥ 5 560,630,0008% A8 A &) f 2K &
FREEEE0.017T%97,181,250 &
REESEOITHEBK -BHE—F
ERFZA=Z+—HULEFE KEAEA
B 384,000 M EHREEFRBEE
0.012 T M B 18 . 532,473,750 7~
ARIRATBREESE0.0ITTHLE
R-EEMBEESFHE LKA R R T
AR

—EE_FNA=++tH  Cosmos
MediaRl B ERERBHZEREE =
HEE=ZJELHFOEFR MAQBRE
[ Cosmos Media# i B8 I #E ([ BB A%
BN =_EEZE_FNA=-_++tHIE
BEEUREEAFINPA ST AF LA
NBHBEBEREERNAGDREAR
4,000,000 7t SR EEE #0.0170
FEElk MEBRAREAESFFEA
BEHFEBLBAARADR I ERD
FREBE-HEEHIHBPH -
TRHE+ A /B Cosmos MedialP 1T{£
1,335,185 7T (X9 E R %10,413,000
L) MERE EZEREERKRAEK0.012
T RIESG7,462,611I A2 7 &R E &
BEE0.01 T E B K-
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27.

94

CAPITAL AND RESERVES 27. EXKHE
The Group (a) &£
Share  Convertible
Share Share Contributed  Exchange Capital option bond Accumulated Minority Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
TER 2
BA  RHEE RARH% ENRE  EARKE BRERE REEE  BHER #  BREE  RA4E
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
liF3 E¥Tr E¥fn  BETm  ERTn  BEFn BETm  EETn EEFn E¥Tn EEfn AR
At 1 April 2005 ETREMA-A 232,240 89,738 174,867 76 3,490 2 9 @11,271) 89,241 - 89,241
Exchange differences on BEGNHBAR
translation of financial BREZ
statements of EAZEE
overseas subsidiaries = = = 121 = = = = 121 = 121
Shares issued upon SBTHRRERE
conversion of BkH
convertible bonds (@7] 325 158 - - - - (99) - 384 - 384
232,565 89,896 174867 197 3,490 2 - #11,27) 89,746 - 89,746
Capital redluction BRI A ©ie) (227,914) - 201914 - = - - - - - -
4,651 89,896 402,781 197 3,490 2 = @11,271) 89,746 = 89,746
Share premium reduction BB EE (c)fina) - (89,305) 89,305 - - - - - - - -
Utiisation of reserve against BV & H
acoumulated losses 2R (c)fi)4) - - (407,288 - - - - 407,288 - - -
Shares issued through BERRERTRG
placing (c)(ii) 672 9,331 - - - - - - 10,003 - 10,003
Shares issued for acquision &R & —E K@
of a subsidiary AEETRA (c)fv) 27 3,788 - - - - - - 4,025 - 4,005
Equity-settled share-based MR A& E R {7
transactions FRR5 - - - - - 4 - - H - 4
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - - (36510 (36,510) = (36,510)
At 31 March 2006 and RZZTE
1 April 2006 ZR=+-8R
—ZEXEMA-A 5,560 18,710 84,798 197 3,490 43 = (40,493 67,305 = 67,305
Exchange differences on BEENHBARA
translation of financial b
statements of overseas EXZEE
subsidiaries - - - (114) - - - - (114) - (114)
Reserve released upon HEHBARR
disposal of subsidiaries R R - - - 27 - - - - 27 - 27
Equity-settled share-based ~ SABRA L E {7
transactions BAZS - - - - - 14 - - 14 - 14
Share options lapsed SRERE - - - - - (28) - 28 - - -
Loss for the year rEEEE = = = - - - - bro1n)  rom) - oM
At 31 March 2007 RZZRLHF
=A=+-AH 5,560 13,710 84,798 10 3,490 29 = (107,482) 215 = 215
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27.  CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued) 27. EBEXR#E (&)
(b)  The Company (b) ZXAF
Share Convertible
Share Share Contributed option bond  Accumulated Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve losses equity
[N R4 EE BEREY BRERS TRRES RiER eyt
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FitaE BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2008 R-ZTRE
mA—H 282,240 89,738 174,867 2 99 (407,876) 89,070
Shares issued upon RBRMRRESRE
conversion of BIIRA
convertible bonds ) 325 168 - = (99) - 384
232,565 89,896 174,867 2 - (407,876) 89,454
Capital reduction BRI A ©)ie) (227,914) - 227,914 - - - -
4,651 89,896 402,781 2 - (407,876) 89,454
Share premium IR & (B
reduction ©i) - (89,305) 89,305 - 4 - -
Utiisation of reserve PRRELH
against accumulated 25 EE
losses i) - . 407,288) . g 407,288 .
Share issued through ~ EBEE
placing EakH (c)fi) 672 9,331 - - - - 10,003
Share issued for BUE-RHE
acquisition of AR BETRH
a subsidiary (c)iiv) 287 3,788 - - - - 4,025
Equity-settled AR 45 8 i
share-based KRR
transactions = = = 4 = - 4
Loss for the year KEEFE - - - = (38,459) (38,459)
At31March2006and  R=TTREF
1 April 2006 ZE=+-BR
ZERRE
mA—H 5,560 13,710 84,798 43 - (39,041) 65,070
Share options lapsed Sk ER A% - - - 28) = 28 =
Equity-settled ARA & E R
share-based FAx%
transactions - - - 14 - - 14
Loss for the year rEEFE - - - - - (80,520) (80,520)
At 31 March 2007 RZBE+F
ZA=+-H 5,560 13710 84,798 29 L (119533) (15,436)
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27.  CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

27. EBEXKfH#HE (&)

(c) Share capital (c) AR 2
Authorised and issued share capital FEEEZITRA
Ordinary shares of Ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each HK$0.50 each
BREEE®0.01T R EE S % 0.507T
VEER VEER
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
R{EE AIE BB EE AIE
Note ‘000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
fit 5t Fhe  ABETFIT Fie  ABETIT
Authorised: EERAK:
At 1 April 2005 RZZEZTRFEMNA—A 66,000,000 660,000 - -
Share consolidation Bt & B (i(1) (66,000,000)  (660,000) 1,320,000 660,000
- - 1,320,000 660,000
Share subdivision 1) 7+ 48 (ih(5) 66,000,000 660,000  (1,320,000)  (660,000)
At 31 March 2006 RZZTRF
—A=+—H 66,000,000 660,000 - -
At 1 April 2006 and ZETRENA—AR
31 March 2007 —TELF
=A=+—H 66,000,000 660,000 - -
Issued and fully paid: EETRHAE:
At 1 April 2005 RZZEZTHAFEMNA—A 23,223,960 232,240 - -
Shares issued upon HpmaREsg
conversion of BTG
convertible bonds (i 32,473 325 - -
Share consolidation B’ & Bt (i(1) (23,256,433) (232,565) 465,129 232,565
- - 465,129 232,565
Capital reduction B R AR AR (@) 465,129 4,651 (465,129) (232,565)
465,129 4,651 - -
Shares issued BERELEBITRG
through placing (iii) 67,232 672 - -
Shares issued upon AU —E B
acquisition of a subsidiary A 7] E 173 (iv) 23,676 237 = =
At 31 March 2006 RZZETRE
=A=+—H 556,037 5,560 - -
At 1 April 2006 and RZZEZEXEMA-BR
31 March 2007 —TTAF
=A=+-—H 556,037 5,560 - -
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27.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

Share capital (Continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to revenue
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at shareholders’ meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to
the Company’s residual assets.

i)

ii)

Shares issued upon conversion of
convertible bonds

On 9 May 2005, convertible bonds in the carrying
amount of HK$384,000 were converted into
32,473,750 ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.012 per ordinary
share.

Capital reorganisation

Pursuant to the resolutions passed on an annual
general meeting of the Company held on 15
September 2005, the Company implemented a
capital reorganisation on 16 September 2005 as
follows:

1) Share consolidation

Every fifty then issued and unissued
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were
consolidated into one new ordinary share
of HK$0.50 each (“Share Consolidation”).
On the basis of 66,000,000,000 existing
authorised ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
and 23,256,433,000 existing issued
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each, the
authorised and issued ordinary shares of
the Company were consolidated into
1,320,000,000 authorised ordinary shares
of HK$0.50 each and 465,129,000 issued
ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each
respectively.

27.

BEAXAR#E (&)
(c) B (&)

EREFAEABRERTREIRED
Wash B WEREARBBRRAE
tmE-—REOHBE-—ERE#-FH
ARREBEEZMBEEBERGA
18 [R] # F) -

i) RBUBRKRESFERITRG

B ®m B B ® 384,0005T
mABRESFR R
AFRANA R ES2,473,750
R EEBE0.01 T AR A
TER AMEASREBRE
#0.0127T

i) REEH

BEARTR_ZETRAFNAT
TEBTZRRBEFAE LEBA
HRZER ARAIR=_ZETRF
NATARBETHRASZAR
e

1) BRiné&

66,000,000,000R% & A% T (&
BEOOITT 2B LAEE B
% X 23,256,433,0000% & i%
HEBEOITZEAED %
TEBRFE ARBZEE
BEERTBROHEDANEHE
1,320,000,0000% & I% T & 75
BOL0THEELBR R
465,129,000/% & I E BB #
0.50TM B BITE B
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27.

98

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

ii) Capital reorganisation (Continued)

2

3)

4)

Capital reduction

Upon completion of Share Consolidation,
the nominal value of the ordinary shares of
the Company was reduced from HK$0.50
each to HK$0.01 each (“Capital
Reduction”). On the basis of 465,129,000
existing issued ordinary shares of HK$0.50
each, the nominal value of issued share
capital of the Company was reduced from
HK$232,565,000 to HK$4,651,000. An
amount of HK$227,914,000 standing to
the credit of the share capital account of
the Company was cancelled and credited
to the contributed surplus account of the
Company.

Share premium reduction

In compliance with the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and with effect from 16
September 2005, an amount of
HK$89,305,000 standing to the credit of
the share premium account of the
Company was cancelled and credited to
the contributed surplus account of the
Company (“Share Premium Reduction”).

Application of credit

Upon completion of Capital Reduction, in
accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, the directors were authorised to
apply the credit of the contributed surplus
account of the Company in the sum of
HK$407,288,000 to offset an equivalent
amount of the accumulated losses.

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Z={&k5 ¢ (£E) AR A &

27.

BEXR#E (&)

(c) ®BA& (&)

i) RAEHE (&)

2)

3)

4)

e N1V

TRRMOE & - RNARER
f& 2 mE B &R BEEE0.50T
BEESKR BT ([
AHIR ) 2% 465,129,0000%
HFREEEE0S0TTZREA
EBRTEBERFE A4
RAIZEBITRAEESRSE
232,565,0007C & = & #&
4,651,0007T ° AN 2 7] & A&
3R H) 1 BR 75 #5227 ,914,0007T
Wi WEFALRRABER
BEEER-

Bl 5 A% 1 52 1B

BREBRE-—NN\—FAQF
FEAZETRFNA+TRH
R AR R R B R AR
75 189,305,000 T 4 sE 84 » I
EFARR B EHABBER ([H
BRI BE]) °

SERK AR AN B R 12 - IR IE AN A A)
ZARMAIRARE— AN
—FRRE EFERERBA
RAEBBHBENERES
H B 407,288,0007T A 1E K
HETEMREE-
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27.  CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

ii)

i)

iv)

Capital reorganisation (Continued)
5) Share subdivision

Upon completion of Capital Reduction,
each of the existing authorised ordinary
shares of HK$0.50 each in the share capital
of the Company was subdivided into fifty
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each. On
the basis of 1,320,000,000 existing
authorised ordinary shares of HK$0.50
each, the authorised share capital of
HK$660,000,000 was divided into
66,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each.

Issue of new shares

On 1 December 2005, the Company and with
South China Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”)
entered into a placing agreement whereby the
Company placed through the Placing Agent an
aggregate of 67,232,000 new ordinary shares of
the Company of HK$0.01 each to not less than
six investors who are independent third parties to
the Company at a price of HK$0.15 per ordinary
share. The placing was completed on 14
December 2005. The net proceeds from the
placing of approximately HK$10,003,000 was used
for general working purpose.

Shares issued for acquisition of a subsidiary

On 1 December 2005, the Company and an
independent third party entered into an agreement
whereby the Company acquired 100% equity
interest in Treasurepoint Limited for a consideration
of HK$4,025,000 payable by the issue and
allotment of 23,676,471 new ordinary shares of
the Company of HK$0.01 each at the price of
HK$0.17 per ordinary share.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

i)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
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27.  CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

ii)

i)

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the result of capital
reorganisation implemented in December 2003 and
September 2005. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, the contributed surplus account of
the Company is available for distribution. However,
the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or
make distributions out of contributed surplus if:

- it is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

- the realisable value of its assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium accounts.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy 3(s).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group
reorganisaton in November 1992 and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
thereof.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the
Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share based
payments in note 3(0)(ii).

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 March 2007, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity holders of the Company,
including contributed surplus and accumulated losses, was
nil (2006: HK$45,757,000).
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27.

28.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(f) Accumulated losses retained by an associate of the
Group

Included in the accumulated losses as at 31 March 2007
of the Group is nil (2006: Nil) retained by an associate of
the Group.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

Employee share-based compensation benefits represent the fair
value of employee services estimated to be received in exchange
for the grant of the relevant options over the relevant vesting
periods, the total of which is based on the fair value of the
options granted. The amount for each period is determined by
spreading the fair value of the options over the relevant vesting
periods and is recognised as staff costs and related expenses
(note 7(b)) with a corresponding increase in the share option
reserve.

(a) Share options
i) Old Scheme

Prior to the New Scheme effective on 10 November
2002, the Company has a share option scheme
which was adopted on 10 November 1992
whereby the board of directors (“the Board”) is
authorised, at their discretion, to grant to eligible
employees of the Group, including directors of any
company in the Group, to take up options and
subscribe for the shares of the Company. The
terms and conditions of the grant are determined
by the Board at the time of grant. In any event, the
exercisable period of an option must not exceed a
period of ten years from the date of grant. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company. Options are
forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in special
general meeting of the Company held on 29
October 2002, the Company has terminated the
operation of the Old Scheme that no further options
could thereafter be offered under the Old Scheme
but outstanding options granted under the Old
Scheme shall remain effective subject to the
relevant provisions of the Old Scheme and
approved and adopted the New Scheme. There
were no share options outstanding under the Old
Scheme at 31 March 2007.
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28. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(a) Share options (Continued)

ii) New Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme which
was adopted on 10 November 2002 whereby the
Board is authorised, at their discretion, to grant to
employees of the Group, including directors of any
Company in the Group, and eligible grantees to
take up options and subscribe for the shares of
the Company. The terms and conditions of the
grant are determined by the Board at the time of
grant. In any event, the exercisable period of an
option must not exceed a period of ten years
commencing on the date of grant. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one

28. LURFEEROEAXRES (&)

(a) BB IR #E (48)

i) #at#

ordinary share in the Company. Options are

forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.

(b) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed

EN/NET)S
Ry —RERES EFa
BEENBRAASKERE (BHEA
SEEFRKERFNES) hE
BIg AR AR A 2w B B A
REAQA R - EHEREN
ER R REEER R EBR
REFORTE  HEBBRENITERT
AHRAREE RS T F-8%
FBAEDRE TR A ARE IR
A E AR A o i (2 B B R
AEE BRES BRI

— = —

— ==

F+—A+A

(b) FAERHAHURHEY UK

during the years are as follows and all options are HERERRREGDT:
settled by physical delivery of shares:
Number of
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price options granted
Rt AH 5E A0 TR TEE BREHE
Old Scheme
Esta
27 April 2000 Vested on the date of grant 27 April 2000 to 26 April 2010 HK$8.800 78,000
—TTTF R HEBEE “ZEEZFEWMA_+tAE 7 18.8007T
mA=++A “E-ZEWMA=+"H
31 January 2001 Vested on the date of grant 31 January 2001 to 30 January 2011 HK$7.600 24,000
—ETF R B SR —ZEZ-F—-A=+—H% #7.6007T
—A=+—AH —Z——%—-R=+H
4 January 2002 Vested on the date of grant 4 January 2002 to 3 January 2012 HK$5.450 58,000
—ETF§ RELBRHER —ET_F-HAMAZE % 5.4507T
—AMA —E--%—H8=H
8 August 2002 Vested on the date of grant 8 August 2002 to 7 August 2012 HK$3.600 160,000
—ETC R B RS —ZEZ-F\ANBE & #3.6007T
NANE —T-—F\AtH
320,000
New Scheme
et
14 March 2005 15 March 2005 to 30 June 2006 1 July 2006 to 31 December 2006 HK$1.075 100,000
ZZETRE e o e s o = Y —ETRELA-HZE B #1.0757T
=RA+mA —EERERA=TH ZEERE+ZA=1+—H
14 March 2005 15 March 2005 to 30 June 2007 1 July 2007 to 31 December 2007 HK$0.136 100,000
—TThF “TTRFE=-A+HHEZE —ETLFLRA-HE #1%0.1367T
=A+mA “EZLERA=TH ZEEt+E+ZA=1+—H
14 March 2005 15 March 2005 to 30 June 2008 1 July 2008 to 31 December 2008 HK$0.149 100,000
—TThF “TTRFE=-A+HHEZE —ETEN\FLA-HZE #10.1497T
=R+mA —EZN\FRA=TH ZEEN\E+=ZA=1+—H
300,000
620,000
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28.

(Continued)

(c)

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 28. LBRAEEROEAXRS (&)
The weighted average exercise prices and number (c) BERENEEITHEEREH
of share options are as follows: BwT:
2007 2006
—EELF ZEERF
Weighted Number Weighted Number
average of share average of share
exercise options exercise options
price granted price granted
k¥ 15 [Z:-L: niEFH BT
THEE BREE TEE BEREZE
HK$ ’000 HK$ ‘000
B Ftz B Fi7
Old Scheme EstE
Outstanding at 1 April R A—HREKITE 5.5028 320 0.1488 148,700
Forfeited during the year AR Uk N/AT & A - 0.1090 (800)
Adjustments due & B &
to share consolidation HAabZE18M
and others YEH A% N/AT i A - N/AT i FB (144,640)
5.5028 320 7.2708 3,260
Forfeited during the year AR Uk 5.5028 (320) 7.4633 (2,940)
Outstanding at 31 March R=A=+—H
A R AIT N/ATE A - 5.5028 320
New Scheme et
Outstanding at 1 April U A—HBEEATE 0.4533 300 0.0091 15,000
Adjustments due Mt & BF K
to share consolidation HAibZE18Mm
and others YE M A% N/AT i A - N/AT i FB (14,700)
0.4533 300 0.4533 300
Lapsed during the year ~ F ALK 1.0750 (100) N/ATEHR -
Outstanding at 31 March R=A=+—H
M ARATE 0.1425 200 0.4533 300
Total outstanding R=A=+—H
at 31 March R AT E A AT 0.1425 200 3.0595 620
Exercisable at 31 March AR =A=+—H
111E 0.1425 - 5.5028 320

The options outstanding at 31 March 2007 had exercise
price of HK$0.136 to HK$0.149 (2006: HK$0.136 to
HK$8.8) and a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 1.25 years (2006: 3.72 years).

R-ZEZLE=ZA=1+—HHEKRTED
BRETEEN TBK0136TEERK
01497 (ZZEZ RNF: N FH%0.136
TLEBKS.8TL) - MMNEFHRBRE D
BB B1.25F (ZZEZRF :3.724F) °
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28.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

For the options granted under the New Scheme on 14
March 20086, the fair value of services received in return
for share options granted is measured with reference to
the fair value of share options granted. The estimate of
the fair value of the services received is measured based
on the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. Contractual
life of the option and expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the model. The expected volatility is
based on the historical volatility. Expected dividends are
based on historical dividends as well as expectation on
future period performance. Changes in subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Fair value of share options and assumptions
Weighted average:
Fair value at measurement date

HK$0.26

HK$0.02
HK$0.136 to HK$1.075

Share price
Exercise price

Expected volatility 82.87%
Expected option life 2.3 years
Expected dividends -%
Risk-free interest rate 3.34%

For the options granted under the Old Scheme, no
amounts were recognised when employees (which term
includes the directors of the Company) were granted share
options over shares in the Company in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 3(0)(ii) for the Group
has taken advantage of the transitional provisions set out
in HKFRS 2 under which the recognition and measurement
policies have not been applied to (i) all options granted to
employees on or before 7 November 2002, and (i) all
options granted to employees after 7 November 2002
but which had vested before 1 January 2005. If the
employees chose to exercise the options, the nominal
amount of share capital and share premium were credited
only to the extent of the option’s exercise price receivable.

Share options were granted under a service condition.
The condition has not been taken into account in the
grant date fair value measurement of the services rendered.
There were no market conditions associated with share
option grants.
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29.

30.

DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) not recognised

As at the balance sheet date, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
approximately HK$169,232,000 (2006: HK$177,229,000) as it is
not probable that future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity. The tax losses of approximately HK$169,232,000 (2006:
HK$172,557,000) do not expire under the relevant current tax
legislation and nil (2006: HK$4,672,000) will expire in five years
from the year in which they were incurred.

The Group and the Company had no other significant potential
deferred taxation not recognised for the year and at the balance
sheet date.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Hong Kong

The Group operate Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is
a defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of $20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Other than Hong Kong

The subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC other than Hong Kong
participate in defined contribution schemes organised by the
respective municipal or provincial governments in the PRC whereby
they are required to make contributions at the rates ranging from
20% to 22% of the standard wages determined by the relevant
authorities in the PRC.

Under the above schemes, retirement benefits of existing and
retired employees are payable by the relevant PRC scheme
administrators and the Group has no further obligations beyond
the contributions.

29.

30.
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 3. ZKERERERKT
STATEMENT
(a) Disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 (a) BE-—EZELtHF=H=+—H
March 2007 LEEHEWBE AR
On 31 December 2006, the Group disposed of certain R-ZBEERF+-_A=+—8"
subsidiaries, namely 1t 7 22125 ¢ B &£ AR 2 7], Tianjin AEENRSREBE1TRAE
City Hai Jin Audio-Video Distribution Co., Ltd. and Mega VE=ZFHEETHBAR o
Bonus Investments Limited, which were engaged in the Rl AEFBEAMEE TR RS E
business of publishing and multi-media product trading in BEMBEEBNILRRER
Mainland China, to an independent third party for a cash EFERAGREMEBEZR
consideration of HK$1. & 1T B R 2 7 &k Mega Bonus
Investments Limited
The cash flow and the net liabilities of subsidiaries disposed FTHENHBRARNIRERENR
of are provided below: BEFENT:
2007
—ETtF
HK$’000
BT T
Fixed assets EEE 26
Inventories e 254
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b fEULAR 3k 39
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERS 97
Trade and other payables B o5 REMmEMERRK (2,875)
Due to a related company e RE N B A (160)
Net amount due to the Group FEAS AR BRI FEE (21,943)
Net liabilities disposed FIEMAaERE (24,562)
Exchange reserve released % PR FEE 5 4 27
Gain on disposal & s 24,535
Cash consideration received, satisfied in cash B UWIRE&RE - AR S X -
Less: Cash of subsidiaries disposed of W PR ERBARMNIRE (97)
Net cash outflow in respect of HENBARNE ML FHE
the disposal of subsidiaries 97)

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year contributed
HK$899,000 (2006: HK$1,820,000) to the Group’s
turnover and a loss of HK$9,000 (2006: HK$2,271,000)
to the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company.
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 31. ZREBRERERMT (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 b) BE-EZEEARF=ZHA=+-—H
March 2006 LEEHEWE QT
During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group HE-ZTZERF=A=+—HLt
deregistered certain subsidiaries which were engaged in FE-AEBUEREREET
the business of broadcasting and content production for WEERERE B REXEBH N B
nil consideration. ~ A
The cash flow and the net assets of subsidiaries disposed FrHERBARINRERERE
of are provided below: EFEAT:
2006
—EERXR
HK$'000
B F T
Fixed assets EEE 213
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H A fE U AR X 75
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERE 11
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNSERR (34)
Net assets disposed FrEEEFE 265
Loss on disposal HEBE (265)
Cash consideration received, satisfied in cash B UWIRERE - ARG X -
Less: Cash of subsidiaries disposed of T EHRBARNR (11)

(c)

Net cash outflow in respect of HENBAFTMNESRLFE

the disposal of subsidiaries

The subsidiaries disposed of during that year had no
significant impact on the Group’s turnover and contributed
HK$3,000 to the loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company for that year.

Acquisition of a subsidiary during the year ended
31 March 2006

On 30 December 2005, the Company acquired 100%
interest in Treasurepoint Limited (“Treasurepoint”), for a
consideration of HK$4,025,000 satisfied by the issue and
allotment 23,676,471 new ordinary shares of the Company
of HK$0.01 each at the price of HK$0.17 per ordinary
share. The acquisition has been accounted for using the
purchase method. The subsidiary acquired during that
year had no contribution to the Group’s turnover or revenue
and contributed a loss of HK$5,000 to the loss attributable
to equity holders of the Company for that year.

(c)

(11)

ZFEFRNATHEHRBARYAER
BEBVESAFE BEZE
[ #5 3 78 #5.3,0007T B AR A A
mEE AEEEE-

BE_¥¥X<F=A=+-—AH
I FE W —EHE QR

R-ZEZTRF+_A=+H K
A A AR (B 78 ¥ 4,025,0007T U
B Treasurepoint Limited
([Treasurepoint] ) 2 Zp#EzE - I
BRZSREBERELATLZ
BE1& 317 R Bl 223,676,471 &
AEE B #0.017T 2 AN A B #T &
BRI ARE  WEREEA
BR-ZFE RN 2B AR Y
AREBEEBS ST &R
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 31. ZREBRESRERMKE (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)
(¢)  Acquisition of a subsidiary during the year ended (c) BE-—ZEZAF=HA=+-—H

31 March 2006 (Continued) IEEFEWRBHBLAT (&)

The cash flow and the net assets of the subsidiary acquired TR B ARMNRERERE

are provided below: EFEDT:
The Group
RE
Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
FIE AT 2
ATE REE
HK$000
BEEF T
Intangible assets (note 15) mEEE (Hit15) 841 841
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H th fE U BR 5K - =
Net assets acquired Pl g & =58 841 841
Goodwill arising on R EAEREE
acquisition (note 17) (Ktat17) 3,184
Total consideration R (E 4,025
Less: Purchase price of W FBREREER
HK$4,025,000 satisfied 0.7 EAT
by issue of 23,676,471 23,676,471 1% = f%
new ordinary shares of H{EBE0.017TH
the Company of AN AT AR
HK$0.01 each at a price of THBEE
HK$0.17 per ordinary share 75 ¥ 4,025,0007C (4,025)
Cash consideration paid ENBAESRE =
Cash of the subsidiary Pl BE R B A Rl Y
acquired He -
Net cash flow in respect of IR BERT B A A/

acquisition of the subsidiary REeMEFHE -

PR B AT X 5 80 & B e
X 78 8 7K £ B Y7 B8 Treasurepoint
18 B A O 155 (R 280 FE o

The goodwill is attributable to the profitability of the acquired
business and the synergies expected to arise after the
Group’s acquisition of Treasurepoint.
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Disposal of deconsolidated subsidiaries

On 1 April 2005, the Group disposed of certain
subsidiaries, which were engaged in the business of
broadcasting and content production and the business of
publishing and multi-media product trading to an
independent third party for a nil consideration. The directors
considered that for accounting purpose the subsidiaries
should be deconsolidated from the consolidated financial
statements with effect from 1 April 2004. The disposals of
these subsidiaries resulted in a nil gain/loss in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2006. Details of
deconsolidated subsidiaries disposed of are disclosed in
note 40.

The subsidiaries disposed of during that year had no
significant impact on the Group’s turnover or loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company for that
year.

Major non-cash transactions

i) During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group
acquired 100% interest in Treasurepoint Limited
for a consideration of HK$4,025,000. The
consideration was satisfied by the issue and
allotment 23,676,471 new ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.17
per ordinary share.

i) During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group’s
other receivables of HK$47,200,000, before
impairment, were settled by way of 1,849,131
common shares in NextMart Inc. (‘NXMR”) (formerly
known as Sun New Media Inc.), a company
incorporated in the State of Minnesota in the United
States of America with its shares trading on a
stock exchange system in the United States of
America. The pricing of the 1,849,131 common
shares in NXMR was calculated at 85% of the
average closing price per common share of NXMR
during the last ten trading days of NXMR up to
and including the day of settlement of the other
receivables.

i) During the year ended 31 March 2006, convertible
bonds in the principle amount of HK$384,000 were
converted into 32,473,750 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at the conversion price of HK$0.012
per ordinary share.

31.

RERERBRME (&)

(d)

(e)

HEFTBEEARNKEQS

R-_ZETAFWHA—H A&E
AERERBIE=HTHEET
e @R e B BUER KR
HZRABEMEEXFONBR
Al-EERAS MEARMS
MEBARAE _ZTZTMFMEA—
HETBERATARE MRS
M- HEZEMBRANEE —
TEERNF=ZA=T—HILFEZ
BHEREEET R BEE
HENTBES ARNKE QA
TR FE40 ©

T EN B AR SR FEEAREHE
EEBHARBERTTE ARG
BERITEEATZE-

TEHRERS

i) REBEEZZTZEF=A=
+—BLEEFEE AEEIZ
R 1B 7 ¥ 4,025,0007T W
B Treasurepoint Limited
2EiEE - RESEBE
FREBREE0ATTZ
B % & 17 Kk B %
23,676,471/ S E B E
BO.01 T Z AR A F LA
ESENE

i) REBEEZZTZTF=H
+—BHIEE A&
H i B BR B K
47,200,0007T (R {E AIT)
A 1,849,131[% NextMart
Inc. ([NXMRJ) (BT#&Sun
New Media Inc. * 7 E F
BR & T2 B AR fE R 2 1 s 1R
K3z AR ERH R E
FEBEEZRRZ2EERSA
RpEE) ARz AR
% fite1,849,131 I RNXMR
LM% 2 BRI NXMRE
BEREBEERBEINHEA
FERBRFE B I &1 + (&
RSB ZERFEHWTE
Z85%FT & -

iy MREZEZZEZF=ZA=
+—BLEEE - AE5EB
#384,0007T < A] 2 A% &
SEREBREBRAER
0.012LZ HIR BRI A
32,473,750 F X EE
¥0.0170 2 @Ak -
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32.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risk management is of fundamental importance to the business
operation of the Group. The major types of risk inherent in the
Group’s business are credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk and operation risk. The Group’s
risk management objective is to maximise shareholder value and
to reduce volatility in earnings while maintaining risk exposures
within acceptable limits.

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to other
financial assets, trading securities, and trade and other
receivables.

Investments in other financial assets and trading securities
are governed by whether the issuer and the counter party
respectively have sound and/or reputation.

Trade and other receivables mainly arise from the Group’s
business activities. Management monitors the credit policy
on an ongoing basis. The Group has established
procedures in the selection of customers with sound credit
rating and/or reputation.

The Group has well defined policies in place on the setting
and approval of trading, credit and investment position
limits in order to limit its credit risk exposure and
concentration. As at the balance sheet date, the Group
does not have significant concentrations of credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance
sheet.

Market risk

The Group’s market risk exposure mainly comes from the
impact of market price movements that may result in
losses to the Group. Market risk in trading investment
portfolios is managed by using a combination of risk
measurement techniques including, but not limited to,
position limits and cut-loss limits.
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32.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available to
meset liabilities as they fall due, and it results from amount
and maturity mismatches of assets and liabilities.

The Group’s policy is to regularly assess current and
expected liquidity requirements and to ensure that it
maintains reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities to meet its operating needs and possible liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

Interest rate risk
There are two types of interest rate risk:

U Fair value interest rate risk — the risk that the value
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates; and

U Cash flow interest rate risk — the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to both fair value and cash flow
interest rate risks. The Group monitors its interest rate
exposure regularly to ensure that the underlying risk is
monitored within an acceptable range. The Group’s interest
rate positions arise from treasury and operating activities.
Interest rate risk arises in treasury management.
Management considers the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risk is normal.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk primarily
stems from holdings of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies and net investment in
foreign subsidiaries. As most of the Group’s monetary
assets and liabilities and net investment in foreign
subsidiaries are denominated in Hong Kong dollars or
Renminbi, management does not consider there is any
significant currency risk.

32.
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32.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

®

(9)

(h)

0}

Operation risk

The Group’s operations may be adversely affected by
significant political, economic and social uncertainties in
the PRC. Although the PRC government has been
pursuing economic reform policies for the past years, no
assurance can be given that the PRC government will
continue to pursue such policies or that such policies
may not be significantly altered.

Sensitivity analysis

In managing interest rate and foreign currency risks, the
Group aims to reduce the impact of short-term fluctuations
on the Group’s profit or loss. Over the longer term,
however, permanent changes in foreign exchange and
interest rates would have an impact on consolidated profit
or loss.

Fair value

All financial assets and liabilities are stated at fair value or
carried at amounts not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 March 2007 and 2006.

Estimation of fair values

Fair value of listed investments is usually based on quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date without any
deduction for transaction costs. Fair values of listed
investments are determined using valuation techniques
when quoted prices are not considered to be a reliable
indicator of fair value. Unlisted investments for which fair
values cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost.

The fair values of debtors, bank balances and other liquid
funds, creditors and accruals, and provisions are assumed
to approximate their carrying amounts due to the short-
term maturities of these assets and liabilities.

The fair value of finance lease liabilities is estimated as the
present value of future cash flows, discounted at current
market rates for similar financial instruments.
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33.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
At 31 March 2007, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:
(a) As lessor

At 31 March 2007, the total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
receivable as follows:

33.

KEHERE

RZTETLtF=ZRA=+—H F5ER
B AT 2 A8 T B RS B R R &K
He@BmMT:

(@ FERHBA

RZZBEE+F=RA=+—H &
SERBETAREIKEHERE
WHARKRREHESABMOT

The Group
rE
2007 2006
—RBLE —BTAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT B F T

Within 1 year —FR
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA

The Group sub-let its rented premises under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of two
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

698 -
466 -

1,164 -

AEERBELEEHESDHETHEHEY
E-HO— RO RBME EXE A
BERETEZREH - SEBO P R
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(b)

33. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued) 33. ReHERE (B
As lessee (b) fEHAEFMEA
At 31 March 2007, the total future minimum lease R-ZEE+E=A=+—8 &
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are = BRI T ARG Y T
payable as follows: KRR SET S BEMT -
The Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EEtF —EEXRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 1 year —FR 1,327 3,061
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRBRERAFA - 1,228
1,327 4,289
The leases typically run for an initial period of two years, MAO—MO T REME EFENAE
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are BB AEEER - BEROS KRR
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent GiRe )
rentals.
34. R

34. LITIGATION

(a)

Pending litigation

On 10 July 2006, a legal action for damages of
approximately HK$76,862,000 for breach of agreements
was brought up by four independent third parties (the
“Plaintiffs”), who were the previous minority interests holders
of a former subsidiary of the Company. The Company is
the 1st defendant and Investsource Limited (formerly
known as Sun Television Cybernetworks Company Limited)
(“Investsource”), a former wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company that was disposed of by the Company in June
2004, is the 2nd defendant. It is alleged that the Plaintiffs,
the Company and Investsource entered into a provisional
agreement dated 11 July 2000 (the “First Agreement”)
whereby:

- Investsource agreed to acquire from the Plaintiffs
the 60% equity interest in TV Viagens (Macau),
S.AR.L. (“TV Viagens”);

- Upon signing the formal sale and purchase
agreement and completion of the acquisition
transaction, the Company and Investsource agreed
to provide finance to TV Viagens for any shortfall
of operational costs incurred by TV Viagens and
for the services fees payable by TV Viagens; and
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34.

LITIGATION (Continued)

(a)

Pending litigation (Continued)

= Upon signing the formal sale and purchase
agreement and completion of the acquisition
transaction, Investsource should obtain consent
from the Plaintiffs and the Company before any
transfer of its interest in TV Viagens.

It is also alleged that after the revision of some terms and
conditions under the First Agreement, the Plaintiffs and
Investsource entered into the formal sale and purchase
agreement dated 8 August 2000 (the “Second Agreement”)
whereby:

= Investsource agreed to acquire from the Plaintiffs
the 51% equity interest in TV Viagens, which was
subsequently acquired by Investsource during the
year ended 31 March 2001 and disposed of during
the year ended 31 March 2003; and

= Investsource agreed to provide finance to TV
Viagens from the date of completion of the
acquisition transaction for any shortfall of
operational costs incurred by TV Viagens and for
the services fees payable by TV Viagens.

It is also alleged that in view of the failure by the Company
and Investsource to finance TV Viagens, TV Viagens is
not financially able to continue its business due to short of
working capital and therefore the shareholding of the
Plaintiffs in TV Viagens becomes valueless.

The Plaintiffs claims against the Company for damages of
approximately HK$76,862,000 or such an amount as the
court may determine, interest thereon, costs and/or other
relief due to the Company’s alleged breach of agreements
to provide finance to TV Viagens for its operational costs
and for the services fees payable by TV Viagens.

Up to the date of approval of the financial statements, this
action is still in progress and no hearing date has been
fixed.

34.
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34.

LITIGATION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Pending litigation (Continued)

With the advice of the Company’s external legal adviser,
the directors are of the opinion that the Company has no
legal or financial obligations to the Plaintiffs in that the
First Agreement was superseded by the Second
Agreement and that the Company was not bound by the
Second Agreement. The directors are of the opinion that
the Company will strongly refute and the Company intends
to vigorously contest the allegations and that the allegations
are to be without merit and too remote to be held against
the Company. Based on legal advice, the directors are of
the opinion that the Company has a very good chance of
successfully defending the case. The directors believe that
the dispute can be settled without losses to be incurred
by the Group and the Company, and therefore no provision
for losses in this aspect has been made in these financial
statements.

Claim of HK$1,500,000 and counterclaim of
HK$4,808,000

On 2 June 2004, Top Olympics Enterprises Limited (“Top
Olympics”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and two independent third parties (the “FRD Vendors”)
entered into an agreement (the “FRD Agreement”) whereby
Top Olympics agreed to acquire from the FRD Vendors
the 60% interest in FRD Holdings Inc. (“FRD Holdings”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
collectively owned by the FRD Vendors, and pay a
refundable deposit of HK$1,500,000 (the “Deposit”) to
Mr. Kenneth Ma Hon Wah (“Mr. Ma”), one of the FRD
Vendors, within one month from the date of the FRD
Agreement. In the event that the FRD Agreement is
terminated or the completion of the aforesaid acquisition
of the 60% interest in FRD Holdings does not occur for
whatever reason, Mr. Ma would return the Deposit to Top
Olympics. In June 2004, the Company paid Mr. Ma the
Deposit. However, the FRD Agreement subsequently
ceased as the FRD Agreement was not completed before
the long-stop date of 31 August 2004 of the FRD
Agreement.
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34.

LITIGATION (Continued)

(b)

Claim of HK$1,500,000 and counterclaim of
HK$4,808,000 (Continued)

In November 2004, the Company and Top Olympics
demanded Mr. Ma for the full repayment of the Deposit
and Formula Racing Development Limited (“FRD Limited”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of FRD Holdings, issued a
cheque with an amount of HK$ 1,500,000 to the Company.
However, the cheque was dishonoured upon presentation
for payment by the Company. On 15 June 2005, the
Company and Top Olympics commenced an action against
Mr. Ma and FRD Limited for the immediate full repayment
of the Deposit, interest thereon, costs and/or other relief.

However, FRD Limited counterclaimed against the
Company and alleged that before the Company entered
into the FRD Agreement, the Company agreed to finance
promotional activities and events (the “Promotional
Activities”) to be carried out by FRD Holdings and FRD
Limited in order to promote the image of the Company
and FRD Holdings in the motorsports media and organiser
discipline. It was also alleged that FRD Limited spent a
sum of approximately HK$4,808,000 on the Promotional
Activities and prepared to set-off the Deposit against the
expenses of HK$1,500,000. Accordingly, FRD Limited
counterclaimed against the Company an amount of
approximately HK$4,808,000 in relation to the Promotional
Activities, interest thereon, costs and/or other relief.

On 22 March 2007, the case was heard by The High
Court of The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
and judgement was held in favour of the Company and
Top Olympics. Mr. Ma and FRD Limited were required to
repay the Company the Deposit together with the interest
thereon until payment and litigation costs. Up to 31 March
2007, the accrued interest on the Deposit was
approximately HK$282,000. In May 2007, the Deposit
was repaid to the Company.

34.
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35.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
related party transactions.

(a)

Profit guarantee for Tidetime Future Optical Media
Technology Limited

Pursuant to an agreement dated 24 August 2004 entered
into between Tide Time Holdings Limited (“Tide Time
Holdings”), a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and the Company, Tide Time Holdings issued to the
Company a guarantee whereby the total profit after tax of
Tidetime Future Optical Media Technology Limited
(“Tidetime Future Optical”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company which was acquired from Tide Time Holdings
by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2005,
will not be less than HK$22 million for two years
commencing on 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2006
(the “Guaranteed Profit”). If Tidetime Future Optical is not
able to meet the Guaranteed Profit, Tide Time Holdings
will pay the Company a sum equivalent to the shortfall of
the aggregate of the actual profit after tax of Tidetime
Future Optical and the Guaranteed Profit as compensation.
Based on audited financial statements, the aggregate
actual result after tax of Tidetime Future Optical for two
years commencing on 1 January 2005 to 31 December
2006 was a loss of approximately HK$14 million. The
Company does not recognise the compensation
receivable, in view of uncertainty of collectibility, cash flow
and fair value of the compensation. Up to the date of
approval of these financial statements, the Company had
not called upon Tide Time Holdings under the guarantee
to pay the shortfall to the Company.

Tide Time Holdings is beneficially owned as to 70% by
Mr. Chen Ping (“Mr. Chen”), 5% by Ms. Ma Jianhua,
spouse of Mr. Chen, 10% by Ms. Ma Jian Ying (“Ms.
Ma”), sister-in-law of Mr. Chen, 3% by Mr. Walter
Stasyshyn (“Mr. Stasyshyn”) and 10% by Mr. Man Ming
(“Mr. Man”). Mr. Chen, Ms. Ma, Mr. Stasyshyn and Mr.
Man are directors of the Company.

118 Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited /&[5 % (£E) R A 7

35.

EXBEALXS

BB REEMEOABE LIRS R
BN REEBETUTHEALIR S

(a)

REENAEBERITRF
RE

RIEA QT E ZRKETide Time
Holdings Limited ( [ Tide Time
Holdings] ) EER QA RIR ZZZ Y
FNA-_+TMOBZETHNWHE
Tide Time Holdings[Al & A &)
HER REARAREE_Z
TRF=A=+t—RALEFEKE
MARRZENBAREEEH
HEEERAR ([REEH
IV EZZZTRF—HA—HZ
ZEERFT A=+ —H®WF
A B B 18 0 B AR B R = R B
#522,000,0007T ([fRZBE @A) °
WE BRI REEBRE R
# > Tide Time Holdings & [A) 24~ 2
AN EERREENAERR
g aMERERN —& 250
FIE ERRE - RIRLCHE XM
BE —EERF—A—HEZ
BEERET-_A=+—HBMER
EENANERRBEEERE
184975 #14,000,0007T ° £ 1 7
EMITREREE ReRERD
FETAHEE AR A IR
EREE - BEZETBEREH
S H o ARRQ A I E A Tide Time
Holdings:8 571 18 & & R E & - A
AR EEE-

Tide Time Holdings% Bl i BR ¥
S ([BREE]) ERHERT0%
PREEMEBHREELLES
5% BREEMNEFSRERZL
([BxzL])#B10% - Walter
Stasyshyn#t & ( [ Stasyshyn%t
) BEASWARXELEE ([X
REDEE10% - RELE -BL
=+ - Stasyshynst £ R XL EHT A
KARES-



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R & B AE

For the year ended 31 March 2007 {2 — L+ F=A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A% # 51| {&)

35.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Sales of inventories to a related company

During the year ended 31 March 2006, Tidetime Future
Optical Media Technology Limited (“Tidetime Future
Optical”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
supplied multi-media products to Tide Time USA
Corporation, (“Tide Time USA”), a company controlled by
Mr. Chen Ping (“Mr. Chen”), a director of the Company,
amounting to HK$743,000, which was settled in full during
that year, under similar terms as it traded with other
customers. In the opinion of the directors, the transaction
was carried out in the ordinary course of business and on
normal commercial terms. As at 31 March 2006, there
was no outstanding balance due from Tide Time USA to
the Group.

Purchases of inventories from a related company

During the year ended 31 March 2006, 1t J Z= & k1%
BEEBRERART (“RRIEE”), acompany controlled by
the spouse and daughter of Mr. Chen, supplies 1t 7 %=
EErEEBR AR (“BREZE"), the then wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, with the publishing
products amounting to HK$56,000, which was settled in
full during that year, under similar terms as it traded with
other suppliers. In the opinion of the directors, the
transaction was carried out in the ordinary course of
business and on normal commercial terms. As at 31 March
20086, there was no outstanding balance due to B #%
& from the Group.
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35.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 35. EABEALRE (£)
(Continued)
(d)  Advances from related companies (d BEATIBERX
During the year ended 31 March 2006, the following parties REBEEZZTEF=A=+—8
advanced to the Group and the Company in aggregate a EFEE TIHALDRRAER
sum of HK$11,186,000 and HK$2,730,000 respectively. RARBBIREEHBE
The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and had no 11,186,0007T & /& # 2,730,000
fixed terms of repayment. An aggregate amount of TLoRBABEER £ERERETE
HK$10,730,000 and HK$2,730,000 had been repaid by BB RZFEE ARERAR
the Group and the Company respectively during that year. AIBE D REERSHEBEK
Accordingly, as at 31 March 2006, there was an 10,730,0007T & % % 2,730,000
outstanding amount of HK$456,000 due to 1t R Z=1E & TLZBF AL HEZTTRF
EHBERBR A A from the Group. ZA=+—H8 AEEEMNILR
REREHREEEAR AR
¥ 5 75 # 456,0007T °©
The Group The Company
rE KAF
Advance Repayment Advance Repayment
E-E N BX E=E B
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
B FT B FT BT T B TFT
G Yean Electronics G Yean Electronics
Technology Company Technology Company
Limited Limited 1,137 (1,137) - -
Shenzhen Tidetime Shenzhen Tidetime
Technology Company Technology Company
Limited Limited 2,627 (2,627) - -
Tide Fuhua Technology BB ZERIFE AR A A
Limited 3,553 (3,553) 2,730 (2,730)
RINRMEEERAR RYNIRMEEBR DT 3,413 (3,413) - -
IR RERBHE I RREREHE
ERBRAA BERABMRAR] 456 = = =
11,186 (10,730) 2,730 (2,730)
Shenzhen Tidetime Technology Company Limited and 7% Shenzhen Tidetime Technology

YK rE % AR A A are companies controlled by Mr.
Chen. G Yean Electronics Technology Company Limited,
Tide Fuhua Technology Limited and 1t RZR{ZE & E 5B
R AR A are companies controlled by Mr. Chen
and Ms. Ma Jian Ying (“Ms. Ma”) who are directors of the
Company.
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35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(e)

()

(9)

Guarantees given by a director of the Company
and a related company

During the year ended 31 March 2006, Mr. Chen and
Tide Fuhua Technology Limited, a company controlled by
Mr. Chen and Ms. Ma, had given personal guarantee and
corporate guarantee respectively to the extent of
HK$4,000,000 in favour of a bank for banking facilities
granted to Tidetime Future Optical Media Technology
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. At
31 March 2006, the guarantees had been cancelled.

Reclassification of investment in an associate

Sun Television Cybernetworks Enterprise Limited (“Sun
Enterprise”) was an associate of the Group at 31 March
2005. During the year ended 31 March 2005, Sun
Enterprise arranged a right issue (the “Rights Issue”) to its
then shareholders and the Group did not exercise its right
to subscribe new shares. As a result, on 2 March 2006,
Sun Enterprise issued and allotted 42,000,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$1 each in Sun Enterprise to one of
the then shareholders. Upon completion of the Right Issue,
the Group’s effective interest of 30% in Sun Enterprise
was dilute to 0.01% and the Group’s investment in Sun
Enterprise was accounted for as available-for-sale securities
with an initiation measurement at nil. This reclassification
resulted in a nil gain/loss in the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2006.

Guarantee issued to a service provider of an
associate

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Company
issued a guarantee to a service provider (the “Service
Provider”) of Sun Television Cybernetworks Enterprise
Limited (“Sun Enterprise”), an associate of the Group until
2 March 2006, in respect of a service agreement entered
into between Sun Enterprise and the Service Provider.
Sun Enterprise defaulted the repayment to the Service
Provider and the Service Provider called upon the
Company under the guarantee to pay a sum of
HK$2,717,000. As a result, the Company paid a sum of
HK$2,717,000 to the Service Provider during the year
ended 31 March 2006.
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35.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(h)

0}

Amount due from an associate

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the amount due
from Sun Television Cybernetworks Enterprise Limited
(“Sun Enterprise”), the associate of the Group, until 2
March 2006, to the Company was HK$377,000, on which
the Company has already made a full impairment on the
amount in 2005. In light of the fact that Sun Enterprise
was in financial difficulties, the directors concluded that it
is appropriate to write off the amount in 2006.

Disposal of a subsidiary to a related company

On 22 December 2004, the Company entered into a
conditional agreement with Sun Media Investment Limited
(“SMI”), a company controlled by Ms. Yang Lan, a director
of the Company until 6 December 2005, and Dr. Wu
Zheng, Bruno, a director of the Company until 8 December
2004 and spouse of Ms. Yang Lan, whereby the Company
agreed to sell and SMI agreed to purchase the entire
100% interest in the share capital of China Sports Media
Limited (“China Sports”) for a consideration of
HK$46,200,000, which was determined with reference to
the Company’s investment cost of HK$42,000,000 in
China Sports. The consideration is satisfied (i) in cash
and/or (i) by way of transfer of the investments, which are
traded on the Stock Exchange, the stock exchange of
the United States and/or other stock markets and satisfy
certain criteria. The settlement must be made within 180
days after the completion of this transaction. In the opinion
of the directors, the transaction was carried out on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary course of business.
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35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
(i) Disposal of a subsidiary to a related company
(Continued)

On 24 August 2005, the Company and SMI entered into
a supplemental agreement whereby the settlement date
was extended and an interest was imposed on the
consideration of HK$46,200,000 at 6.75% per annum for
such extension, which was resulted in HK$1,000,000
interest payable by SMI to the Company.

In December 2005, SMI settled the consideration of
HK$46,200,000 and the interest of HK$1,000,000, by
way of transfer of 1,849,131 common shares in NextMart
Inc. (“NXMR”) (formerly known as Sun New Media Inc.), a
company incorporated in the State of Minnesota in the
United States of America with its shares trading on a
stock exchange system in the United States of America.
The pricing of the 1,849,131 shares in NXMR was
calculated at 85% of the average closing price per
common share of NXMR during the last ten trading days
of NXMR up to and including the date of settlement.

(i) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
as disclosed in note 9 and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 10, is as follows:

35.
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Short-term employee benefits MHEEEREA 2,890 3,731
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Equity compensation benefits R EEEF 14 41
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Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note

7(b).
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36.

37.

NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Issue of convertible notes

On 11 June 2007 and 20 June 2007, the Company and two
independent third parties (the “Subscribers”) entered into a
subscription agreement and a supplemental agreement whereby
the Company agreed to issue convertible notes in an aggregate
principal amount of approximately HK$25,353,000 the Subscribers
at par. The convertible notes will be unsecured, interest bearing
at 2% per annum and matured after five years from the date of
issue of the convertible notes. The convertible notes can be
redeemable at par in whole or in part by either:

= the Company on the date of maturity of the convertible
notes; and

= the holders of the convertible notes if the trading of the
shares of the Company has been suspended for
consecutively more than twenty trading days.

The holders of the convertible notes will have the conversion right
as attached to the convertible notes to convert any of the
outstanding principle amount of the convertible notes into the
shares of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.228
per share, subject to adjustments, during the conversion period
commencing from the date of issue of convertible notes to the
seven business days immediately prior to the date of maturity of
the convertible notes.

On 18 July 2007, the transaction was completed and the
Company received an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$25,353,000 in cash.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
with the current year’s presentation.
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38.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 32 contains information about the assumptions and their
risk relating to financial instruments. Other key resources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Assessment of impairment for non-current assets

The Group has non-current assets, including goodwill and
other intangible assets. Assets that have an indefinite useful
life are tested for impairment annually. Assets that are
subject to depreciation and amortisation are assessed on
an annual basis as to whether there is any indication of
impairment loss which suggests that the carrying value of
these assets may not be recoverable. Management
assesses the recoverable amount of each non-current
asset based on its value in use (using relevant rates) or on
its fair value less costs to sell (with reference to market
prices), depending upon the anticipated future plans for
the assets. Estimating the value in use of an asset involves
estimating the future cash inflows and outflows to be
derived from continuing use of the asset and from its
ultimate disposal and applying the appropriate discount
rate to these future cash flows. Cash flow projections for
the remaining useful life of the asset and the most recent
financial budgets/forecasts are approved by management.

(b) Impairment for bad and doubtful debts

The Group provides impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based upon evaluation of the recoverability of the
trade receivables and other receivables at each balance
sheet date. The impairment are based on the ageing of
the trade receivables and other receivables balances, the
credit-worthness of debtors and the historical write-off
experience, net of recoveries. If the financial condition of
the debtors were to deteriorate, additional impairment may
be required.
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38.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

(d

Impairment of broadcasting programmes

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the
Group’s broadcasting programmes with reference to all
readily available information and current market
environment. Impairment for estimated irrecoverable
amounts are recognised in income statement when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining whether impairment on broadcasting
programmes is required, the Group takes into consideration
the current market environment, the estimated market
value of the assets and/or the present value of future
cash flow expected to be received. Impairment is
recognised based on the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use.

Valuation of investment in securities

All financial securities are recognised initially at fair value.
The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition
is normally the transaction price, i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received. Fair values of investments
in securities that are quoted in active markets are based
on bid prices for assets held and offer prices for liabilities.
When independent prices are not available, fair values are
determined by using valuation techniques which refer to
observable market data. These include comparison with
similar instruments where market observable prices exist
and appropriate valuation techniques commonly used by
market participants.
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38.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

Valuation of investment in securities (Continued)

The main factors which management considers included
(i) the likelihood and expected timing of future cash flows
on the securities. These cash flows are usually governed
by the terms of the securities, although management
judgement may be required in situations where the ability
of the counterparty to service the securities in accordance
with the contractual terms is in doubt; and (i) an
appropriate discount rate for the securities. Management
determines this rate, based on its assessment of the
appropriate spread of the rate for the securities over the
risk-free rate. When valuing securities by reference to
comparable instruments, management takes into account
the maturity, structure and rating of the instrument with
which the position held is being compared.

Changes in their fair value of trading securities directly
impact the Group’s income statement in the period in
which they occur. Change in their fair value of available-
for-sale securities is recorded directly in equity until the
securities are sold, at which point the cumulative change
in fair value is charged or credited to the income statement.
For those securities classified as available-for-sale,
consideration as to whether any such assets should be
written down to reflect an impairment is taken into account
in the fair value of the relevant security. Any impairment in
the value of available-for-sale securities held as available-
for-sale is reported in the income statement and hence
reduces the Group’s profit for the period.
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38.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

®

Measurement of fair value of equity-settled
transactions

The Company operates share option schemes under which
employees, including directors, of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions. The cost of these equity-settled transactions
with employees is measured with reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted, using
assumptions including expected volatility and risk-free
interest rate. Such cost is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting period.
In determining the cost of these equity-settled transactions
considerable judgement is an essential ingredient in the
valuation process and the Group refers to all readily
available information.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
carried forward to the extent it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the unused
tax losses can be utilised, based on all available evidence.
In assessing the probability, both positive and negative
evidence is considered, including whether it is more likely
than not that the operations will have future taxable profits
over the period in which the deferred tax assets are
deductible or utilised. Recognition primarily involves
judgement regarding the future financial performance of
the particular legal entity or tax group in which the deferred
tax asset has been recognised. A variety of other factors
are also evaluated in considering whether there is
convincing evidence that it is probable that some portion
or all of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised,
such as the existence of taxable temporary differences,
group relief, tax planning strategies and the periods in
which estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred taxation and related financial models
and budgets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
The Group uses all readily information including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of revenue and amount of operating costs in
assessing the probability. In addition, actual outcomes in
terms of future taxable profits may be higher or lower
than estimated at the balance sheet date, which would
affect the profit or loss in the future years.
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39.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2007 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.

In addition, the following developments may result in new or
amended disclosures in the financial statements:

Amendment to HKAS 1 Capital Disclosures !

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs 2

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures '

HK(FRIC)-Int 7 Applying the Restatement
Approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies 3

HK(FRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS2 4

HK(FRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded

Derivatives ©

HK(FRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and

Impairment ©

HKFRS2-Group and Treasury
Share Transactions 7

HK(FRIC)-Int 11

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2007

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 November
2006

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2009
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40. DETAILS OF DECONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 40.
DISPOSED OF DURING YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2006

REBEZ-ZEZEXFE=ZA=
LEtFEFEFREENBRRK

+ —
1

Fal

H
PN
=]

On 1 April 2005, the Group disposed of the following subsidiaries,
which were deconsolidated from the consolidated financial

statements on 1 April 2004.

ARRFFTR

:%%ﬁi@ﬂ B -AEEHE T
BE-EENFMA— EliTﬁﬁ\%?/m\
ﬂ‘k#&%%%n:. ARRH B

Proportion of
ownership interest

FRE LB
Place of Group’s Held by
incorporation effective the Held by the
Name of company and operation holding Company subsidiary
=F 8 BY 3 )% ]
NCTEE R B BERER ARAREHEE WELARAEFE
AEEREERRA PRC 100% - 100%
AEEEREARAD H B
B ELEESAR AR PRC 100% - 100%
IERGHtLESER AR H Y
MG EEBARA PRC 90% - 90%
HMNGAAEBBRA H
Beijing Jingwen Multi-media Education PRC 100% = 70%
Company Limited
Beijing Jingwen Multi-media Education H
Company Limited
Billion Idea Advertising Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100%
BREESHERAIQA 5
SilkOnNet.com Company Limited Hong Kong 60% = 60%
EPRBRRAERAA 5
Sun Century Programs Production & Hong Kong 100% - 100%
Distribution Group Limited
BRABRETZEEEZETERERA 5
Sun Enterprise Marketing Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100%
SR XL HEERR QA 5
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40.

DETAILS OF DECONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
DISPOSED OF DURING YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2006

(Continued)

40. REBZE=-ZEEXF=ZHA=+—H
LtEERHEENBARRKILEES
ABREE (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest

PR RELE Bl
Place of Group’s Held by
incorporation effective the Held by the
Name of company and operation holding Company subsidiary
oA & -3
AR BB iR B BERER AAREFEE WEBLARKHE
Sun Entertainment Television Limited BVI 100% — 100%
Sun Entertainment Television Limited BAHS
Sun Entertainment Television Hong Kong 100% — 100%
(Hong Kong) Limited
BRREER (BF) BRAA B
Sun International Marketing & BVI 100% — 100%
Distribution Limited
Sun International Marketing & BAHS
Distribution Limited
Sun Nominees Limited Hong Kong 100% — 100%
Sun Nominees Limited BE
Sun Publishing Holdings Limited BVI 100% 100% -
Sun Publishing Holdings Limited BAHS
Sun Television Marketing & Hong Kong 100% — 100%
Sales Limited
B X TS EBER DA B
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFEMBERE

RESULTS
E
For the year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1+—HLEE
(restated)
(&E31))
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
TEE=F _TTNF T RF 2T F ZEELHF
HK$'000  HK$000  HKP000  HKP000  HK$000
BT BT EBEEFIL EETFIT BY¥Frn
TURNOVER EER
Continuing operations SEEEET 184,489 184,077 30,170 51,132 32,050
Discontinued operations BRI = = = = -
184,489 184,077 30,170 51,132 32,060
OPERATING LOSS REEE
Continuing operations RELEER (370,381)  (247,861)  (178,579) (36,510) (67,017)
Discontinued operations ERIEFEB = = > = -
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION BB RIEE (370,381)  (247,861)  (178,579) (36,510) (67,017)
TAXATION BiE (3,222) (353) = = -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR KEEEE (373,603)  (248,214) (178,579) (36,510) (67,017)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: FEfh:
EQUITY HOLDERS AATEEHEA
OF THE COMPANY (364,864)  (231,046) (177,040 (36,510) (67,017)
MINORITY INTERESTS DEBRRER (8,739) (17,168) (1,539) = -
(373,603)  (248,214)  (178,579) (36,510) (67,017)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EERAE
At 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
—EE=F _TTNF —TTRF —_FTETEF ZEELHF
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BT BT BEFr BEFr BETFR
TOTAL ASSETS HmEE 609,416 220,760 153,588 143,079 54,001
TOTAL LIABILITIES weE (193,843 (86,302) (64,358) (75,774) (53,786)
415,573 134,458 89,230 67,305 215
TOTAL EQUITY NN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO BFEAEMN
EQUITY HOLDERS B
OF THE COMPANY 385,622 124,862 89,230 67,305 215
MINORITY INTERESTS DERRES 29,951 9,596 = — -
415,573 134,458 89,230 67,305 215
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